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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This sectionofthe Cityof Morgantown’sannualfinancialreportpresentsmanagement’s discussionandanalysisofthe City’s
financial performance during the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2005. Please read it inconjunctionwith the City’sfinancial
statements,which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• As reported in the City’sgovernment-widestatementofnet assets, total assets and net assetsofthe City’s business-
type activities accountfor49% and 36%, respectively,oftotalassets andtotalnetassetsof bothgovernmentaland
business-type activities.Business-typeactivities includetheoperationof the City’s parking facilities and municipal
airport and the leasing activitiesof the buildingcommission.Total assetsand netassetsofthe City’sgovernmental
activitiesaccountfor51%and 64%,respectively,of total assets and total net assetsofthe combined activities.The
largeramountof netassetsas a percentoftotal netassetsreportedby the governmental activities is a resultof the
business-typeactivities financingofassetsthroughbondissuances,of which the governmentalactivitieshave none.

• Net capital assets(costless accumulated depreciation) in the governmentalfundsincreased by$5,435,S77.This
included $4.8million in land acquisitioncosts,which was funded by West Virginia economic developmentgrants.

• Taxes andotherrevenuesgenerated$6,563,950more than netexpenses(total expensesless charges forservices,
grants, and contributions)forgovernmentalactivities. Of this excess, $5,496,544 million wasreceivedin the formof
grants for capital assets, which arenotrecordedasexpensesin the statementof netassets.

• The change in net assetsof thebusiness-typeactivitieswas $2,449,864, an increaseof $692,669overthe changein
net assetsreportedfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004. The change in netassetswas largely dueto capital grants
received by themunicipalairportfor capitalimprovements.

• In the City’s business-typeactivities,operating revenuesincreased$526,454,or 13%,overthe previous fiscal yearto
$4,523,855, while operatingexpensesincreased by $626,744 or15%. However, the Parking Authorityreported
significantly improved operatingresults,while the Airport’soperatingresultscontinuedto deteriorate.

• In the General Fund, the revenues were$584,191,or 4%, more than budgeted, while expenditures, including
transfers, were $727,034, or4%,lessthanbudgeted. The General Fundreportedanexcessof revenuesover
expendituresof$465,143, for a net increase in fund balanceofthe sameamount. While thefund balance,asrestated,
in the General Fund at the beginningof the year is reported at $3,576,214,only $846,082was availablefor
appropriationforbudgetpurposesdue to themethodused by the Citytodetermine its carryover which records tax
revenue in theperioddueratherthan in the period for which the taxesareapplicable.

• TheCity transferred$1,872,486 into the CapitalReserveFund, $1,665,486of whichcamefrom the GeneralFund.
This comparesto $1,249,409 transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund from the General Fundduring the fiscalyear
endedJune 30, 2004.Ofthe amounttransferred from the General Fund during the current year, $424,018 camefrom
one-timebusiness andoccupationtaxeson majorconstruction projects,andthe balanceresultedfrom greaterthan
expected collectionofregularB&O and othertaxes.

OVERVIEW OFTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annualreportconsistsof four parts—management’sdiscussion andanalysis(this section),thebasicfinancial statements,
requiredsupplementaryinformation,and an optionalsectionthatpresentscombining statementsfor non-majorgovernmental
funds. The basic financialstatementsinclude two kindsof statementsthatpresentdifferentviewsof theCity:

The first two statementsaregovernment-widefinancialstatementsthatprovidebothlong-termandshort-terminformation
aboutthe City’s overall financialstatus. The remaining statementsarefundfinancial statementsthat focuson individualparts
ofthe Citygovernment,reporting operations inmoredetailthan the government-widestatementsand includegovernmental
funds,proprietaryfunds,andfiduciaryfunds.

• Thegovernmentalfundsstatementstell how generalgovernmentservicessuch as public safety andpublic works were
financedin theshort-term,aswell as what remainsfor fitture spending.

• Proprietaryfundsstatementsoffer short-and long-term financial information about theactivities theCity operates
like businesses,suchas themunicipal airportand parking authority.

• Fiduciaryfundsstatementsprovideinformationabout thefinancialrelationships in which theCity actssolelyas a
trustee or agent for thebenefitof othersto whom theresourcesin question belong,suchas the threepension plans
administeredby theCity.
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The financialstatementsalso include other notes that explainsomeofthe information in the financial statements andprovide
more detaileddata. In additionto these requiredelements,thereis also a sectionwithcombiningstatementsthatprovide
detailsaboutnon-major governmentalfunds, eachof whichareaddedtogetherandpresentedina singlecolumnin thebasic
financial statements.

The followingis a summaryof the major featuresofthe City’s financial statements, including theportionofCity government
they cover and thetypesof information theycontain:

Government-wide
Statements GovernmentFunds Propriety Funds Fiduciaryfunds

Scope Entire City govermnent
(exceptfiduciaryfunds)

Theactivitiesof the City
that are not proprietaryor
fiduciary,such aspublic
safety,public works,and
parks

Activities theCity operates
similar to privatebusinessessuch
astheAirport and Pai~king
Authority,

Instances in whichtheCity
is the trusteeoragent for
someoneelse’s resources,
such as the City’sthree
pension plans

RequiredFinancial
Statements

Statementofnetassets
Statementofactivities

Balance sheet
Statementofrevenue,
expenditures, and changes
in fund balances

Statementofnetassets
Statementof revenues, expenses,
and changes innetassets
Statementof cash flows

Statementof
~ netassets
Statementofchangesin
fiduciarynetassets

AccountingBasis
and Measurement
Focus

Accrualaccounting and
economicresources
focus

Modifiedaccrual
accountingand current
financialresourcesfocus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Accrual accountingand
economicresources focus

Type of
AssetiLiability
Information

All assetsandliabilities,
both financialand
capital,short-termand
long-term

Only assets expected to be
consumed and liabilities
that comedue during the
year orsoonthereafter; no
capitalassetsincluded

All assets and liabilities, both
financial and capital,short-term
andlong-term

All assets and liabilities,
bothshort-termandlong-
term; can include capitalas
well asfinancial assets

Typeof
Inflow/Outflow
Information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardlessof when
cash is receivedorpaid

Revenuesfor which cash is
receivedduring or soon
after the endofthe year;
expenditureswhengoods
and serviceshavebeen
receivedand payment is
dueduringthe year orsoon
thereafter

All revenuesandexpenses
duringtheyear,regardlessof
when cash is receivedorpaid

All revenues andexpenses
during the year,regardless
of when cashis received or
paid

Government-WideStatements

The government-widestatementsreportinformation about the City as a wholeusingaccounting methods similarto those used
by private-sectorcompanies.Thestatementofnet assets includesall of the City’s assets and liabilities, but doesnotinclude
thoseofthe fiduciaryfunds.Thestatementof activitiesincludesall ofthe City’s current year revenues and expenseson a full-
accrual basis.

Thetwo government-widestatementsreportthe City’s netassets—thedifference betweenassetsand liabilities—and the change
in net assets.Netassets and the change therein is one way to measure the City’s financial health orposition:

• Overtime,increasesor decreases in net assetsarean indicationofwhether theCity’s financial healthis improving or
deteriorating,respectively.

• However,toassess the overall healthof theCity, additional non-financialfactors,such aschangestothe City’s
economic or taxbasemust be considered.

TheCity’s government-wide financialstatementsaredivided into two categories:
• Governmental activities— Most ofthe City’s basic services areincludedhere, such as police, fire, public works,

parks, and generaladministration.Charges for services financeapproximately30%of theseactivities,while the
various taxes and fees cover approximately 61%.Theremaining 20% is financed primarily bygrantsandinvestment
income.

• Business-typeactivities— TheCity’s parking facilities,municipal airport, and the leasingactivitiesto its governmental
activities comprise the business-typeactivities. Charges for services are expectedtocoverthe full costof operations
ofthese activities,includingcapitalmaintenance.
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FundFinancial Statements

Thefund financialstatements provide more detailed information about theCity’s mostsignificantfunds— not the City as a
whole. Fundsare accountingdevices that theCity usesto keeptrackof specificsourcesoffunding and spending forparticular
purposes. Some funds are required by state law, bond covenants, or grantagreements.Other funds may beestablishedto
control and managemoniesforparticular purposes andto showthat such designatedrevenues areproperlyused.

TheCity hasthreekindsof fundsasfollows:

• GovernmentalFunds— Included in the City’s governmental funds are the GeneralFund, special revenue funds, and
capitalreservefunds. Thesefunds are usedto accountfor the City’s basic financialservicesandprovidea detailed,
short-term view. The focus is on how cash and assets thatcanreadily be convertedto cash flowin and out and the
balances left at fiscal year end thatcanbe appropriated. Because thisinformationdoes not include the additional
long-term focusof thegovernment-widestatements, areconciliationispresented at the endofthegovernmentalfunds
statements thatdetails thedifferencesbetween thetwo focuses.

• ProprietaryFunds— Activities for whichusercharges are made and whichareexpectedto cover the costof the services
providedarereportedin proprietary funds.Proprietaryfundsprovideboth long- and short-termfinancialinformation
and arepresentedon thefull-accrualbasisof accounting. The City’s proprietaryfundsareits threeenterprise funds
establishedfor the ParkingAuthority, Airport, and the BuildingCommission.Thesefundsare the same as the City’s
business-type activities,butthe fundstatementsprovidemore detail andadditional information, including information
on cashflows.

• FiduciaryFunds— TheCity is thetrustee,or fiduciary, for thethreepensionplans it administrates—thepolicemen’s
pension, firemen’s pension, andthe civilian employees’pension plans. It is also responsibleforotherassets that,
becauseof a trustarrangement,canonly be usedfor thetrustbeneficiaries.TheCity isresponsiblefor ensuring that
the assets reportedin these funds are usedfor theirintendedpurposes. AlloftheCity’s fiduciary activities are
reportedin the statementof fiduciarynet assets and the statementof changesin fiduciary net assets.Thesefunds are
notincludedin the City’sgovernment-widefinancial statementsbecause the City cannot use these assetsto financeits
operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OFTHE CITY AS A WHOLE

NetAssets

The City’s combined net assets increasedby $9,013,814 to$46,671,202.Ofthis total,$36,598,200was invested incapital
assets, netofrelated debt. A totalof $800,555was restrictedfordebt service,leavingtheremaining$9,272,447 unrestricted.
The netassetsofthe governmentalactivities increased28% from thepreviousyearto $29,756,458,with$7,793,512
consideredunrestricted. The net assetsofthe business-type activities increased14%overthe previous year to$16,914,744,
with $1,478,935consideredunrestricted.

Changes in NetAssets

Theincreasein net assetsofthe governmentalactivitiesof $6,563,950canbe primarilyattributedtogrants that werereceived
forcapitalprojectsin the Economic DevelopmentGrantFund, BusinessImprovementDistrict Fund, and the CapitalReserve
Fund. The increase in netassetsin thebusiness-typeactivities of $2,449,864is due primarily to the capital grantsreceivedby
the Airport.

Governmental Activities

Revenuesforthe City’s governmentalactivitieswere $30,240,251,with $14,062,788 generated from taxes and licenses,
$7,156,574 from charges for services,$8,458,982from grants and contributions, and $561,907 fromothersources. The
followingchartdepicts a more detailed breakdownof the revenuesof the City’s governmental activities:
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Revenues of Governmental Activities

Due to the healthy economic conditions inMorgantown and thesurroundingareas,on-goingrevenues (excluding the one-time
construction business and occupation tax revenue) in the governmentalactivitieshave been steadilyincreasingoverthe past
severalyears.Thishas been accomplishedwithno changesin tax formulas orservicefeesincreases. The following graph
depictsthe growth in theCity’s revenuefrom taxes andlicenses,excluding theone-timeconstructionB&O tax revenues
earmarkedforCapitalReserveFund:

Expensesof the governmentalactivitieshavealso increased at asteady,but modest, rate over the pastseveralyears. Due to
thegrowth in theCity’s on-goingrevenues citedabove,City Council hasbeen able togive employees a costof living each year
for the pastelevenyearsandto absorb the increase in health costs withoutincreasingtheportionpaidby employees through
payroll withholding.However, in aneffort toreduce the escalating health carecostsexperienced in recent years,employee
deductibles and out-of-pocketmaximumswere doubledduring the current year, which contributed to a decreaseof $674,210,
or 27%, in payments for healthclaimsandadministration.While insurancecostsforpropertyand liability insurance for most
of fiscal year2005 was approximately10%more than the previous year, theCity’s renewal rate effective April1, 2005 carried
an increaseof lessthan2% overthe previous year. Fuel costs, however, remained high and the budget for fiscal year 2006 will
reflect this sustainedincrease.The followingchartdepictsthe breakdownof theCity’s expensesfor governmentalactivities
for thecurrent year:
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Business-Type Activities

Servicerevenue in the City’sbusiness-typeactivitiesincreased12%to $4,523,855, whiletotalexpensesincreased15%to
$4,833,904.Boththe Parking Authority and the Airportrealizedincreases in healthplancontributions, liability andproperty
insurance,utilities andfuel. In addition,due to decliningactivity at theairport,the Airport wasrequiredto start paying a
monthly fee for the air traffic control services previouslyprovidedfree ofcharge.

The ParkingAuthorityreportedoperating incomeof $229,519,a significant improvementof $256,865overthepreviousyear’s
operatingloss. Operating revenues were up25%,while operatingexpensesincreased9%. Theincreaseinrevenue resulted
primarily from parking fee and fine increasesputinto effect during the year and improved collection efforts. The net income
reportedby the ParkingAuthorityfor the year was $31,754, animprovementof $38,388 overtheprioryear’s netloss.

Theoperatinglossofthe Airportincreased$76,956overthe previous year,resultingin a reported operatinglossof
($406,136). It shouldbe noted, however, that thedepreciationofcapitalassetsincluded inoperatingexpensestotaled
$507,964. Additionally, the Airport reported cash flows from operatingactivitiesof $463,375, anincreaseof $329,832over
thepreviousyear.

Netnon-operating revenue in the business-typeactivitieswas $2,253,088, which represents aincreaseof 35% from the
previousyear. Thenon-operatingrevenueis due primarilyto capitalgrants received by theAirport fromthe U.S. Department
of Transportationwhich fundedseveralprojects during the year, including a taxiwayextension, the design and constructionof
the safety area extension, and a maintenance building.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completedthe current year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balanceof$8,751,901,an increase
of $945,332 from the previous year.Thisincrease is primarily attributedtoincreases in the GeneralFundand Life and Health
Fund.

Thefundbalancein the GeneralFundincreased$465,143to $4,041,357.However,thebalanceavailableforappropriationin
the subsequent fiscal year was calculated at $1,313,322. Citymanagementpreparesits budget on a basis thatrecognizestax
revenue when thetax is due to be received,ratherthan in the periodforwhich the taxes areapplicable.

The Economic Development GrantFund, which wascreatedin theprior year,is a special revenue fund usedtoaccountfor the
activity fromthreegrants awarded through the WVEconomicDevelopment Fundtotalingover $ 21 million. The projects
funded by these grant fundsinclude the Public Theatre andMarinain theWharfDistrict, the firstphaseofthe Square at
Falling Run,which entailspropertyacquisitionand the demolitionof severalsub-standardhousingunitsneartheWVU
campus,and the NationalBiometricSecurityProject.During the year, these grantfundswereusedto acquire landin the
amountof $4.8million, approximately $4 millionfor the Square at Falling Run and $800,000 for the Public Theatre and
Marina. Also, another $670,00 was spent on engineering,projectmanagement,andrelocatingutilities fortheseprojects.

Includedin the City’s capitalprojectfundsare the Tax IncrementFinancing(TIF) Fund and theBusinessImprovement
District (BID) Fund, whichwere also established during thepriorfiscal year. Two TIF districtshavebeenestablished by City
Council and approved by the WVDevelopmentOffice:

District #1: Falling Run Development/Redevelopment District
District #2: The RiverfrontDevelopment/RedevelopmentDistrict

ThehF Fund is used toaccountfor all propertytaxes designated as TIFpropertytaxes andrestrictedforuse in thatspecific
TIF district, as wellas anyactivity relating to the issuanceof TIF bondsthat may occur in subsequent years. The Cityreceived
TIF propertytaxesof $18,377in fiscal year 2005,butexpended$280,733 on projects, mostof which went forengineering
costs and the relocationof utilities in theRiverfrontDistrict. The fundsfor theseexpenditureswereadvancedfrom the City’s
Capital Reserve Fund andwill bereimbursedby future TIF tax revenues and the issuanceof TIF bondsplannedfor fiscal year
2006.
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TheBID Fund isusedto account for the activity inthreeestablished business improvement districtscreatedto renovate and
improve differentsectionsof High Street. Theseprojects will be fundedbyassessmentson thepropertyownersin thedistrict,
contributions,Federaltransportationgrants, andCity funds. The City beganto assessingpropertyownersin the first BID
district in fiscal year 2005,witha totalof $12,858of assessmentsrecognized.Assessmentsfor the second BID District will
beginin Fiscal year 2006.Expendituresin the BID Fund totaled $22,324 and were primarilyforengineering costs.

Ofthe special revenue funds, the Boardof Parks andRecreation Commissioners(BOPARC)reporteda deficit fund balances
of($209,129), an increase in the deficit reported last yearof ($50,317). Additional facilities andresponsibilitiesaddedto
BOPARCoverthe pastfewyears, including the rail trailsystem,HazelRuby McQuainPark,Dorsey’s Knob Park and Lodge
and the MetropolitanTheatrehaveall combinedto contribute toBOPARC’s deficit. The managementofBOPARC hastaken
stepstoeliminate costinefficienciesand iscontinuallyreviewing its pricing structure and theprofitability of itsvarious
programs. Inaddition,management is reviewing budgetcomplianceon anon-goingbasis and will recommend revisionsto the
Boardas deemed necesary.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Overthecourseof theyear,City Council revised theCity’s generalfundbudgetthreetimes. These budgetrevisionsfall into

two categories:

•Amendmentsandsupplementalappropriationsapproved shortly after thebeginningof the yeartoreflect the actual
beginningaccount balances (adjusting the estimated amounts in the budgetadoptedin March,20044.)

• Revisions made during the year to account foradditionalrevenue received and to increaseappropriationsto prevent
budget overruns.

Evenwith theseadjustments,actual expenditures, including transfers, were $727,034 belowfinal budgetedamounts,while
revenues were$584,191abovethefinal budgetedamounts.Theadditionalrevenues were due mainlyto better-than-expected
business and occupation tax collections.

CAPITAL ASSETAND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

At the endof fiscal year 2005, the City had $71,919,098 invested in capital assets, with $48,248,829 invested netof
accumulated depreciation.Theseassets includeseveralbuildings, fire and police equipment andvehicles,heavyequipment
and vehicles used in public works, parking facilities, andparksandrecreationalfacilities. Thisamountrepresents a net
increaseof $7,085,055overthe previousyear. Major additionsduring the year include the improvements at the Airport
mentioned previously,severalnewpolicecruisers, fire and police department equipmentfundedby a HomelandSecurity
Grant, sidewalk and streetscape projects, the completionofthe lodge atDorsey’sKnob Park, and the land acquisitions funded
by the Economic Development Grants mentioned previously.

Long-term Debt

At the endoftheyear,the City had$12,939,421in long-term,revenuebondsand notes payable. This was an decreasefrom the
previousyearof $353,391. Theonlynew debt was $227,436 drawn downon the ParkingAuthorityrevenue bonds issued in
2002, while principal payments onall debt totaled$580,827. More informationon outstandingdebt can be foundinNote5 of
theNotesto FinancialStatements.

As reported in Note11 of the Notes to FinancialStatements,theParkingAuthoritymet the 110%coverage ratio required in its
2002 bond ordinance afterfailing to do soin theprioryear. The debtservicecoveragefactorwas I .40 for the currentyear.

6



ECONOMICFACTORSAND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET RATES

City officials will implementan increase in the Hotel OccupancyTaxbeginningon July1, 2005, from the current 3%to 6%, as
recently authorized by the West Virginialegislature. This increase is expected to generate $280,000 moreperyear,with one-
halfgoingto theMorgantownArea ConventionandVisitors’ Bureau and the otherhalfto BOPARCto fund “projectsof
impact.” There is nootherincreaseexpected inservicefeesorchangesin tax formulasfor the governmental activities in the
next fiscal year. Anincreasein the one-time business and occupation tax revenues is projected, with abudgetedamountof
$1,200,000, compared to the $400,000budgetedin the2005 fiscalyear asseverallarge constructionprojectsget underway
within theCity. Continuedincreases in this revenuesourceisexpected in the2007 fiscal year aswell.

Budgeted expendituresforoperations are expectedto increaseslightly for fiscal year 2006.Theseexpendituresinclude a
3.5%costof living adjustmentfor employees,increase in fuel and utility costs, andtwo additionalfull-time fire inspectors. In
addition, contributions to the Capital Reserve Fund willincreaseas one-time construction13&O taxes increase, as will
contributions to the Convention andVisitors’ Bureau and BOPARC, as described above.

As for the City’s business-type activities, the positive operatingresultsfor fiscal year2005 are expectedto be sustained in
fiscal year 2006 by the Parking Authority. The operatingbudget is formulated to meet the110%debtcoveragerequirement,
and will be monitored on anon-goingbasis forcompliance.Airport managementcontinuesto seekadditional leaserevenue at
the Airport andto monitortheprofitability offuel sales.A changein thecommercialcarrier in the next year isalsoexpectedto
have positive results, and management is alsoexploringother options toincreasethe activity at the Airport.

CONTACTINGTHE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ,

This financialreportis designedtoprovidecitizens,taxpayers,customers,andcreditorsof the CityofMorgantownwitha
general overviewof the City’sfinancesand to demonstrate the City’s accountabilityfor the money it receives.If you have
questions about thisreportorneedadditional financialinformation,contact the Cityof Morgantown,Finance Director,389
Spruce Street,Morgantown,WV 26505.
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CITY OFMORGANTOWN, WESTVIRGINIA
MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS

FORTHE YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2005

Office Name Term

Elective

Mayor Ronald Justice 07/01/01- 06/30/05

Deputy Mayor William Byrne 07/01/01- 06/30/05

Council Members: Ron Bane 07/01/01- 06/30/05
James Manilla 07/01/01- 06/30/05
FrankScafella 07/01/01- 06/30/05
Don Spencer . . 07/01/01- 06/30/05
TeresaMiller 07/01/01- 06/30/05

Appointed

City Manager DanBoroff

FinanceDirector Denise White

City Clerk LindaLittle

StaffAttorney Stephen Fanok
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
INDEX OF FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

GeneralFund

Special RevenueFunds
Coal SeveranceFund

Community DevelopmentBlock Grant
PublicLibrary

‘Board ofParks andRecreationCommissioners
PoliceForfeiture
Special Grants

Local LawEnforcementGrant
Small CitiesBlock Grant
LibraryExpendableTrust

Dorsey’sKnob Escrow
Life andHealthFund

Economic DevelopmentGrant

CapitalProjectsFunds
Capital ReserveFund

LibraryExcess Levy II
CapitalProject- CheatAreaBranch

CapitalProject- ClayBattelle Branch
Tax Increment Financing

Business Improvement District

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

EnterpriseFunds
Airport

ParkingAuthority
Building Commission

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPES

Policemen’sPension andRelief
Firemen’sPension andRelief

Employee’sRetirementand Benefit
LibraryNonexpendableTrust

LibraryEndowmentFund

9



7U’ Tetrick & Bartlett,PLLC
Certjfied Public Accountants

Consultants

122 N. Oak St. P0 Box 1916 Clarksburg, WV 26302—1916 (304) 624-5564 • Fax: (304) 624-5582 • www.tetrickbartlett.com

INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’S REPORT

The HonorableMayorand.Council
City ofMorgantown
Morganto%vn,WestVirginia

Wehaveaudited theaccompanyingfinancial statementsofthe governmental activities,business-
type activities,majorfunds and theaggregateremainingfundinformationoftheCityof
Morgantown,WestVirginia, asofandfortheyearendedJune30,2005,which collectively
comprisetheCity’s basic financialstatements.These financial statements are theresponsibilityof.
theCityofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s management. Our responsibility is toexpressopinions on
thesefinancial statements based onouraudit.

Weconductedouraudit in accordance with auditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedin theUnited
StatesofAmerica and thestandardsapplicable to financial audits contained inGovernment -

Auditing Standards,issuedby theComptrollerGeneralofthe United States. Those standards
requirethatweplanandperformthe audit to obtain reasonable assuranceaboutwhetherthe
financial statements are freeofmaterialmisstatement.An audit includes examining, on atest
basis, evidencesupportingthe amounts and disclosures in the.financial statements.An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principlesusedand significant estimatesmadeby management,
aswell as evaluating the overall financialstatementpresentation. Webelievethatouraudit
providesa reasonablebasisfor ouropinion.

In ouropinion, the financialstatementsreferredto abovepresentfairly, in all materialrespects,the
respectivefinancialpositionofthegovernmentalactivities, the business-type activities,eachmajor
fund, and theaggregateremainingfund informationofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia, as
.ofJune30, 2005,and the respective changes in financialpositionandcashflows, where applicable,

thereoffor the yearendedin conformity withaccountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedin the

UnitedStatesofAmerica.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards,wehavealsoissuedourreportdated
January12,2006,on ourconsiderationoftheCityof Morgantown,WestVirginia’s internalcontrol
over financial reporting and onourtestsof its compliance with certain provisionsoflaws,
regulations,contractsandgrantagreementsandother matters. Thepurposeofthat reportis to
describethescopeofourtestingofinternal controlover financialreportingandcomplianceand the
resultsofthattesting,andnotto provideanopinionon the internalcontrolover financial reporting
oron compliance.Thatreportis anintegralpartofan auditperformedin accordancewith
Government AuditingStandardsand should beconsideredin conjunctionwith thisreportin
considering the resultsofouraudit.
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The Honorable Mayor andCouncil
City ofMorgantown Page2

Themanagement’sdiscussion and analysison pages1 through 7 is not arequiredpartofthe basic
financial statementsbut is supplementaryinformation required by accountingprinciplesgenerally
accepted in the UnitedStatesofAmerica. We have applied certain limitedprocedures,which
consistedprincipallyof inquiriesofmanagementregardingthe methodsofmeasurementand
presentationoftherequiredsupplementaryinformation. However, we didnotaudit theinformation
and express no opinion onit.

The accompanying scheduleofexpendituresof.passengerfacility chargesis presentedforpurposes
ofadditionalanalysisas specified in thePassengerFacility ChargeAudit Guidefor Public
Agencies,issuedby the Federal Aviation Administration,andis not arequiredpartofthe auditing
procedures applied in the auditofthebasicfinancialstatementsand,in ouropinion, is fairlystated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financialstatementstakenas a whole.

Our audit was conducted for thepurposeofforming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s basic financial statements. The
combining and individualnonmajorfund financialstatementsarepresentedfor purposesof
additionalanalysisand are not arequiredpartofthe basic financial statements. The accompanying
scheduleofexpendituresoffederalawardsis presentedforpurposesofadditional analysis as
requiredby U.S.Office ofManagement and Budget Circular A-133,AuditsofStates,Local
Governments,andNon-ProfitOrganizations,andis alsonot arequiredpartofthebasicfinancial
statementsofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia. The combining andindividual nonmajor
fund financial statements and scheduleof expendituresoffederalawardshavebeensubjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the auditofthe basic financial statements and, inouropinion, are
fairly stated inall material respects inrelationto the basic financial statementstakenas awhole.

• ,

January12, 2006
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005

Business
Governmental Type

Activities Activities ‘ Total

Assets
Cash $ 3,298,462 $ 520,324 $ 3,818,786
Investments 3,245,596 906,187 4,151,783
Receivables . . , 3,646,267 626,516 4,272,783
Internal balances 192,020 ( 192,020) -0-
Inventory . -0- 52,471 52,471
Prepaidexpenses 77,468 73,313 150,781
Restrictedassets -0- 1,654,925 1,654,925
Capital assets,net 21,962,946 26,285,883 48,248,829
Unamortizedbonddiscountand issuecosts -0- 787.392 787,392

Total assets ‘ 32,422,759 30,714,991 63,137,750

Liabilities
Accounts payable . 1,019,912 645,338 1,665,250
Prepaidrevenues -0- 52,500 52,500
Long-term liabilities
Duewithin oneyear . 353,688 673,666 1,027,354
Due in more than one year 1,292,701 12,428,743 13,721,444

Total liabilities 2,666,301 13,800,247 16,466,548

NetAssets
Invested in capitalassets,netofrelated debt 21,962,946 14,635,254 36,598,200
Restricted -0- 800,555 800,555
Unrestricted 7,793,512 1,478,935 9,272,447

Total Net Assets $ 29.756,458 $ 16,914,744 $ 46.67l,202

Theaccompanyingnotes are an integral partofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NET (EXPENSES)REVENUES
PROGRAM REVENUES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Charges Operating Q~I(~l Business
Grantsand Grants and Governmental :rx~~

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

GovernmentalActivities
Generalgovernment $ 3,467,628 $ 390,360 $ -0- $ -0- $( 3,077,268) $ -0- $( 3,077,268)
Publicsafety 7,594,986 2,378,294 228,548 -0- ( 4,988,144) -0- ( 4,988,144)
Highwaysand streets 3,237,406 -0- -0- -0- ( 3,237,406) -0-. ( 3,237,406)
Communitydevelopment 2,233,932 8,800 1,323,488 5,496,544 4,594,900 -0- 4,594,900
Cultureand recreation 4,975,108 1,291,992 1,410,402 -0- ( 2,272,714) -0- ( 2,272,714)
Benefits payments 1.815.326 2.784.493 -0- -0- 969.167 -0- 969.167

Total governmentalactivities 23.324.386 6.853.939 2.962438 5.496.544 ( 8.011.465) -0- ( 8.011.465)

Business— Type Activities
Airport 2,230,734 1,824,014 -0- 2,706,603 -0- 2,299,883 2,299,883
Parking 2,079,629 2,072,824 -0- -0- -0- ( 6,805) ( 6,805)
Building commission 523.541 627.017 -0- -0- -0- 103.476 103.476

Total business—type activities 4.833.904 4,523.855 -0- 2.706.603 -0- 2.396.554 2.396.554

Total . $ ~ $ U~~222~$ ~ $ ~ ( 8.011.4~) 2.396.554 (5,614.911)

General Revenues
Taxes and licenses 14,062,788 -0- 14,062,788
Franchisefees . 266,357 -0- 266,357
Interest and investmentearnings 116,026 53,310 169,336
Miscellaneous 130.244 -0- 130.244

Total generalrevenues 14,575,415 53.310 14.628.725

Change in net assets 6,563,950 2,449,864 9,013,814
Transfersout ( 34,070) 34,070 -0-
Netassets— beginning—restated 23.226.578 14,430.810 37,657.388

Net assets—ending $ ~ $ ~ $ ~

Theaccompanyingnotesarean integralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WESTVIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2005

Boardof Life and Economic Other Total
General Parks and k~~~fflh ~~j~gl DevelopmentGovernmentalGovernmental
Fund Recreation Fund Reserve Funds

ASSETS

Cash $ 1,104,119 $ 272,181 $ 1,013,655 $ 605,418 $ 8,800 $ 294,289 $ 3,298,462
Investments 500,000 -0- -0- 761,511 -0- 1,984,085 3,245,596
Receivables,netof allowances:

Taxes 2,126,573 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 2,126,573
Accounts 272,646 -0- -0- 500 -0- 1,043 274,189
Other 422,230 8,928 38,966 324,000 -0- -0- 794,124
Grants 42,607 -0- -0- 63,943 5,459 3,002 115,011’

Interestreceivable . 562 -0- -0- 1,496 -0- -0- 2,058
Due(to)/fromotherfitnds ( 647) (121,731) -0- 603,638 -0- ( 289,240) 192,020
Prepaidexpenses 62.379 14.158 -0- -0- .~Q 931 77.468

TOTAL ASSETS $ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ 2.360.506 $ 14,259 $ J~JJ~$ 10.125501

LIABILITIES ANDFUNI) BALANCES

Liabilities
Accountspayable . $ 243,357 $ 320,258 $ 413,422 $ 32,172 $ 5,459 $ 5,244 $ 1,019,912
Accruedpayroll and compensated absences 245.755 62.407 -0- -0- ~Q 45.526 353.688

Total liabilities 489.112 382.665 413.422 32.172 5,459 50.770 1.373.600

FundBalances
Reservedfor unemployment -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 11,872 11,872
Unreserved 4.041.357 (209j29) 639.199 2,328,334 ~ 1,931,468 8,740.029

Total fund balances 4.041.357 (209.129) 639.199 2.328.334 ~ 1.943.340 8.751.901

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ ~ $ j~7~$ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ ~ $ ~

The accompanying notes are an integralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCE SHEETS OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSTO STATEMENT
OF NET ASSETS
JUNE30, 2005

Fundbalance,fund level statementJune30, 2005 $ 8,751,901

The totalfundbalanceofthe CityofMorgantown~sgovernmental fundsdiffers
from netassetsofthe governmental activitiesreportedon theStatementofNet
Assets as follows:

Someliabilities are notdueand payable in thecurrentperiodandtherefore,
arenotreportedin thefundlevel statements:

Accrued.compensated absences . ( 1,292,701)

Capitalassets,that areusedin governmental activities and are purchasedor
constructed,thecostsofthose assets arereportedas expenditures in the
governmental funds. However, the StatementofNetAssets includesthose
assets andtheirassociated accumulated depreciation. 21,962,946

Someassets do not provide currentfinancialresourcesandare notreportedas
assets in thefundlevel statements:

Additional accounts receivable— June30, 2005 334.312

Netassetsofgovernmentalactivities $ 29.756A.58

Theaccompanyingnotes are anintegralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Boardof Life and Economic Q~ Total
General Parks and ~italth Q~pital DevelopmentGovernmental Governmental

~ Recreation ~g~4 Reserve Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxesandspecial assessments $ 13,399,230 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,053 $ -0- $ 31,186 $ 13,431,469
Licensesandpermits 235,051 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 235,051
Chargesforservices 2,216,574 1,239,193 -0- -0- 8,800 52,799 3,517,366
Finesandforfeits 551,119 -0- -0- -0- -0- 961 552,080
Franchise fees 266,357 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 266,357
interest 27,045 . 1,354 7,566 31,149 -0- 48,912 116,026
Donations -0- 57,765 -0- 75,500 -0- 456,029 589,294
Intergovernmental

Federal . 202,420 64,101 0 558,030 -0- 392,256 1,216,807
State 20,448 99,952 -0- 181,249 5,561,137 544,930 6,407,716
County -0- 60,000 -0- -0- -0- 260,000 320,000

Contributionsfrom employees -0- -0- 121,718 -0- -0- -0- 121,718
Contributionsfrom employers -0- -0- 2,662,775 -0- -0- -0- 2,662,775
Gain oninvestments . -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 52,024 52,024
Other 56,071 -0- 17.925 3.545 -0- 679 78.220

Total revenues 16.974.315 1.522.365 2.809.984 850.526 5.569.937 1.839.776 29.566.903

Expenditures
Generalgovernment 3,132,926 -0- 125,860 172 -0- 8,685 3,267,643
Public safety 7,279,706 -0- -0- -0- -0- 14,885 7,294,591
Highways and streets 3,138,381 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 3,138,381
Health andsanitation -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Communitydevelopment -0- -0- -0- 2,452,093 5,560,337 655,292 8,667,722
Cultureand recreation 141,249 2,621,174 -0- -0- -0- 1,641,415 4,403,838
Benefit payments -0- -0- 1.815.326 0- -0- -0- j,$15.326

Total expenditures 13.692.262 2.621.174 1.941,186 2.452.265 5.560.337 2.320.277 28.587.501

Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover(under)expenditures 3.282.053 (1.098.809) 868.798 (1.601.739) 9.600 ( 480.501) 979.402

Other FinancingSources (Uses)
Operatingtransfersin 49,280 1,048,492 -0- 1,872,486 -0- 793,355 3,763,613
Operatingtransfers(out) ( 2.866.190) -0- ( 150.000) ( 409.172) -0- ( 372~3~fl( 3.797.683)

Total otherfinancingsources(uses) ( 2.8l6.9J(~) 1.048.492 ( 150.000) 1.463.314 -0- 421.034 ( 34.070)

Netchange in net assets 465,143 ( 50,317) 718,798 ( 138,425) 9,600 ( 59,467) 945,332

Fund balanceatbeginningof year 3.576.214 (i58~812) ( 79.599) 2.466.759 ( 800) 2.002.807 7.806.569

Fund balanceatendofyear $ ~ ~ $ 639.199 $ 2328.334 $ &~X1 $ ~ $ ~7~,901

Theaccompanyingnotes arean integralpartofthe combining financial statements.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Netchange innetassets— totalgovernmentalfunds $ 944,332

Amountsreportedfor governmental activities in theStatementofActivities
are different because:

Governmental fundsreportcapital outlays asexpenditureswhile governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the
life ofthe assets. Thisis the amount by which capitaloutlaysexceeded
depreciation in the current period. 5,488,598

Someexpensesreportedin the StatementofActivities do not require the useof
currentfinancialresourcesand therefore are notreportedas expenditures in
governmentalfunds.

Increase in compensated absences ( 183,465)

Some revenuesreportedin theStatementof Activities do notprovidefinancial
resources that arebothavailable and measurablefor usein current activities. 280,415

Changein Net AssetsofGovernmentalActivities $ 6.529.880

The accompanyingnotes are an integralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FUND BALANCE SHEETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2005

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Airport Parking Building
Fund Authority Commission Total

ASSETS

CurrentAssets
Cash $ 207,186 $ 313,138 $ -0- $ 520,324
Investments -0- 906,187 -0- 906,187
Receivables,netofallowances:

Accounts 25,245 789 -0- 26,034
Interest -0- 687 -0- 687
Grants 599,795 -0- -0- 599,795

Inventory 52,471 -0- -0- 52,471
Due(to)/fromotherfunds ( 192,020) -0- -0- ( 192,020)
Prepaidexpenses 5,826 498 -0- 6,324

Total current assets 698,503 1,221,299 -0- 1,919,802

NoncurrentAssets
Restrictedassets -0- 800,555 854,370 1,654,925

Capital Assets
Land 48,348 1,484,326 717,207 2,249,881
Land improvement -0- -0- 24,400 24,400
Building 4,777,852 -0- 8,097,336 12,875,188
Structures andimprovements 12,643,449 8,337,899 -0- 20,981,348
Leasôholdimprovements -0- 90,965 -0- 90,965
Machineryand equipment 835,553 803,522 168,450 1,807,525
Constructionin progress 2,301,127 -0- -0- 2,301,127
Less: Accumulated depreciation ( 7,946,146) ( 2,996,354) ( 3,102,051) (14,044,551)

Net capital assets 12,660,183 7,720,358 5,905,342 26,285,883

Other Assets
Prepaidexpenses 66,989 -0- -0- 66,989
Unamortized bond discount and
issuecosts -0- 62,062 725,330 787,392

Total other assets 66,989 62,062 725,330 854,381

TOTAL ASSETS $ 13.425.675 $ 9,804.274 $ 7.485.042 $ 30.714.991
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BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Airport Parking Building
Fund Authority Commission Total

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities (payablefrom
current assets)

Currentportionobligationunder
capital lease $ -0- $ 3,302 $ -0- $ 3,302
Notespayable -0- -0- 12,376 12,376
Accounts payable 481,392 163,946 -0- 645,338
Prepaidrevenues 52,500 -0- -0- 52,500
Accruedcompensatedabsences 76,716 86,272 -0- 162,988

Total currentliabilities
(payable fromcurrentassets) 610.608 253,520 12,376 876,504

Current Liabilities (payablefrom
restrictedassets)

Revenue bonds payable -0- 120,000 375,000 495,000
Accruedrevenuebond interest payable -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total currentliabilities
(payablefrom restrictedassets) -0- 120,000 375,000 495,000

Long-TermLiabilities (netof
current portion)

Revenuebondspayable -0- 5,621,985 6,750,000 12,371,985
Notes payable -0- -0- 56,758 56,758
Obligation undercapitallease -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total long-term liabilities -0- 5,621,985 6,806,758 12,428,743

Total liabilities 610,608 5,995,505 7,194,134 13,800,247

Net Assets
Invested incapitalassets, netof
relateddebt 12,660,183 1,975,071 -0- 14,635,254
Restricted -0- 800,555 -0- 800,555
Unrestricted 154,884 1,033.143 290,908 1,478,935

Total netassets 12,815,067 3,808,769 290,908 16,914,744

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS $ 13,425.675 $ 9.804.274 $ 7.485.042 $ 30.714.991

Theaccompanyingnotes are an integral partofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSESAND CHANGESIN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2005

BUSINESSTYPEACTIVITIES
~j~port Parking Building
Fund Authority Commission Total

OperatingRevenues
Charges for services $ 1,818,773 $ 1,588,296 $ 627,017 $ 4,034,086
Fines -0- 465,774 -0- 465.774

Total operating revenues 1.818,773 2,054,070 627.017 4,499,860

Operating Expenses
Personalservices~ 519,131 608,614 -0- 1,127,745
Purchases— fuel 883,562 -0- -0- 883,562
Supplies 27,031 21,101 -0- 48,132
Liability insurance 48,956 51,053 -0- 100,009
Utilities 102,829 75,974 -0- 178,803
General andadministrative 79,166 124,935 1,500 205,601
Depreciation 507,964 357,566 218,054 1,083,584
Maintenance 56,270 62,316 -0- 118,586
Rental lease -0- 522,992 -0- 522,992

Total operatingexpenses 2,224,909 1,824~55i 219.554 4,269.014

Operating(loss) income (~1~06.136) 229,519 407~,4~3. 230,846

NonoperatingRevenues(Expenses)
Interest anddividends 561 32,424 14,190 47,175
Gainon investments -0- 6,135 -0- 6,135
Gain on saleof capital assets -0- -0- -0- -0-
Miscellaneous income 5,241 18,754 -0- 23,995
Interestand fiscalcharges -0- ( 251,723) (250,259) ( 501,982)
Amortizationofbonddiscount
andissuecosts (~5,825) ( 3.355) ( 53,728) ( 62.908)

Totalnonoperatingrevenues(expenses) ( 23) ( 197,765) (289.797) ( 487.585)

Change in netassetsbefore nonoperatinggrants
and operating transfers ( 406,159) 31,754 117,666 ( 256,739)

Transfersin from otherfunds 34,070 -0- -0- 34,070

Nonoperatinggrants 2,706,603 -0- -0- 2.706,603

Change innetassets 2,334,514 31,754 117,666 2,483,934

Totalnetassets— beginning 10.480.553 3,777.015 173.242 14,430,810

Total net assets— ending $ j~Q~2$ 3,808.769 $ 29QI9Q~$ 16.914.144

The accompanying notes are anintegralpartofthis statement.
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CiTY OF MORGANTOWN, WESTVIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2005

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Airport Parking Building
Fund Authority Commission Total

CashFlows from OperatingActivities
Receipts from customers $ 1,817,385 $ 2,055,223 $ 625,517 $ 4,498,125
Payments tosuppliers ( 846,116) (2,218,926) -0- (3,065,042)
Paymentsto employees ( 507,894) 605,736 -0- 97,842

Netcashprovidedby operatingactivities 463.375 442.033 625,517 1,530,925

CashFlows from CapitalandRelated
FinancingActivities

Nonoperatinggrants 2,275,438 -0- -0- 2,275,438
(Increase) in restricted assets -0- ( 26,839) ( 7,599) ( 34,438)
Repaymentofnotes payable -0- -0- (11,849) ( 11,849)
Repaymentsofrevenue bonds -0- ( 191,053) (370,000) ( 561,053)
Proceeds from revenue bonds -0- 227,436 -0- 227,436
Repaymentofobligation undercapitallease -0- ( 7,925) -0- ( 7,925)
Acquisitionofcapital assets (2,635,385) ( 97,377) -0- (2,732,762)
Interestexpense -0- ( 251,723) (250.259) ( 501,982)

Netcash(usedin) capital andrelated
financingactivities ( 359,947) ( 347,481) (639,707) (1,347,135)

CashFlows from InvestingActivities
Increasein investments -0- ( 20,985) -0- ( 20,985)
Interestincome 561 31,990 14,190 46,741

Netcashprovidedby investing activities 561 11.005 14,190 25,756

Netincrease in cash 103,989 105,557 -0- 209,546

Cash at beginningofyear 103.197 207.581 -0- 310,778

Cash atendofyear $ 207,186 $ 313.138 $ -0- $ 520.324
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONT’D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2005

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Airport Parking Building
Fund Authority Commission Total

Reconciliationofoperating incometo net
cashprovidedby operating activities

Operating(loss) income $ (406,136) $ 229,519 $ 407,463 $ 230,846
Adjustmentsto reconcileoperating (loss)
income tonetcashprovidedby (usedin)
operatingactivities:

Depreciationandamortization 507,964 357,566 218,054 1,083,584
Nonoperatingrevenues 39,311 18,754 -0- 58,065
Gain on saleofinvestments -0- 6,135 -0- 6,135
Gain on saleofcapital assets -0- -0- -0- -0-
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable ( 1,388) 1,153 -0- ( 235)
Inventory (19,252) -0- -0- ( 19,252)

Duefrom otherfunds 26,677 -0- -0- 26,677
Prepaid expenses -0- 1,197 -0- 1,197

Increase(decrease)in:
Accountspayable 252,462 ( 175,169) -0- 77,293
Prepaid revenues 52,500 -0- -0- 52,500
Accrued compensated absences 11,237 2,878 -0- 14,115

Netcashprovidedby operating activities $ 463.375 $ 442.033 $ 625,517 $ 1.530.925

The accompanying notes are an integralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,EXPENDITURESAND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Variance
Actual With Final

Actual Budget to Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts (Budgetary GAAP GAAP Favorable

Original Final ~j~) Difference (Unfavorable)

Revenues
Taxes(includinginterest
andpenalties)

Generaipropertytaxes $ 2,434,731 $ 2,424,942 $ 2,472,686 $ 243,269 $ 2,715,955 $ 47,744
Other taxes— businessandpublic service 8,769.000 10.427.500 10.926.544 14.036 10.940.580 499.044
Total taxes 11,203,731 12,852,442 13,399,230 257,305 13,656,535 546,788

Licensesandpermits 249,600 275,600 235,051 -0- 235,051 ( 40,549)
Charges for services 2,053,215 2,178,215 2,216,574 -0- 2,216,574 38,359
Finesandforfeitures 530,000 530,000 551,119 -0- 551,119 21,119
Franchisefees 230,000 230,000 266,357 -0- 266,357 36,357
Interest 20,000 20,000 27,045 -0- 27,045 7,045
Intergovernmental:

Federal 254,447 254,447 202,420 -0- 202,420 ( 52,027)
State -0- -0- 20,448 -0- 20,448 20,448

Miscellaneous 50,920 49.420 56,071 -0- 56,071 6,651
Total revenues 14,591,913 16.390.124 16.974,315 257,305 17,231,620 584,191

Expenditures
Generalgovernment 3,138,994 3,704,559 3,132,926 184,471 3,317,397 571,633
Publicsafety 7,191,467 7,398,404 7,279,706 300,395 7,580,101 118,698
Highwaysandstreets 2,976,060 3,176,333 3,138,381 ( 101) 3,138,280 37,952
Healthand sanitation -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Cultureandrecreation 100.000 140.000 141,249 -0- 141.249 ( 1,249)

Total expenditures 13,406.521 14.419.296 13.692,262 484.765 14.177.027 727,034

Excess (deficiency)ofrevenuesover
(under) expenditures 1,185,392 1.970.828 3,282,053 ( 227,4~Q) 3.054,593 1,311.225

Other FinancingSources(Uses)
Operatingtransfers in 49,280 49,280 49,280 -0- 49,280 -0-
Operatingtransfers(out) (1,6~0.704~( 2.866.190) ( 2,~66,l90) -0- (2,866.190) -0-

Total other financingsources(uses) (j,551.424) ( 2.816,910) (2~816,910) -0. (2.816.910) -0-

Netchangeinfundbalance ( 366,032) ( 846,082) 465,143 ( 227,460) 237,683 1,311,225

Fund balance at beginningof year 366,032 846.082 3,576,214 8,921.345 12,497.559 2.730,132

Fund balanceatendofyear $ ~Ji $ ~Q $ 4.041.357 $ ~ $ ~ $ ~
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJUNE30, 2005

ExplanationofDifferences:
(1) The City budgetsfor capitalexpendituresas acurrentperiodexpenditureratherthan acapital

expenditureon the accrual basisofaccounting.

(2) The Citydoesnotbudgetforaccrued compensated absences payable inmorethanone yearasis
requiredby the accrual basisofaccounting.

(3) The amountreportedas“fund balance”on thebudgetarybasisofaccounting derives from the basis
ofaccountingusedin preparingtheCity’s budget. This amountdiffers from thefundbalance
reportedin the StatementofRevenues,Expenditures,and Changesin FundBalancesbecauseof
the cumulative effectoftransactionssuch as thosedescribedabove.

The accompanying notesarean integral partofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -

COAL SEVERANCE FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Variance
Actual With Final

Actual Budgetto Amounts Budget
BudgetedAmounts (Budgetary GAAP (IAAP Favorable
Original iEiggi iia~is) Differences ~g~js (Unfavora~)

Revenues
Interest $ 125 $ 125 $ 118 $ -0- $ 118 7)
Intergovernmental:

State 56.000 56,000 74.835 23.123 97,958 18.835
Total revenues 56,125 56,125 74,953 23,123 98,076 18.828

Expenditures
Generalgovernment 1,525 623 -0- -0- -0- 623
Publicsafety -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Highways and streets -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Health andsanitation -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Culture andrecreation -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-

Total expenditures 1,525 623 -0- -0- -0- 623

Excessof revenuesoverexpenditures 54.600 55.502 74.953 23.123 98,076 19.451

OtherFinancingSources(Uses)
Operatingtransfers in -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Operatingtransfers (out) (58,000) (57.000) (57.000) -0- (57,000) -0-

Total other financing sources (uses) (58.000) (57.000) (57.000) -0- (57,000) -0-

Net change in fund balance ( 3,400) (1,498) 17,953 23,123 41,076 19,451

Fundbalance at beginningofyear 3.400 1,498 1,498 -0- 1.498 -0-

Fundbalanceat endof year $~4 $ -0- $ 19.451 $ 23.123 $ 42.574 $ 19.451

The accompanying notes are anintegralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY RESONSIBILITIES
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2005

Policemen’s Firemen’s Employee’s Library Library
Pensionand Pensionand Retirement Nonexpendable Endowment

Relief Relief andBenefit E~ (MemorandumOnly)

Assets
Cash $ 1,553 $ 390 $ 1,693 $ -0- $ -0- $ 3,636
Investments 10,570,641 6,769,224 27,978,786 43,650 511 45,362,812
Receivables:

Contributions -0- -0- 56,183 -0- -0- 56,183
Accruedinterest 66.920 38.977 48.907 -0- -0- 154.804
Totalassets 10.639.114 6,808.591 28.085.569 43.650 511 45,577.435

Liabilities
Accountspayable 11.862 34.612 3.497 -0- .~ 49.971

Total liabilities 11.862 34.612 3.497 -0- 49.971

NetAssets
Held in trust $ ~ $ 6.773.979 $ 28.082.072 $ 511 $ 4~4~

The accompanyingnotesare anintegralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
FIDUCIARY RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Policemen’s Firemen’s Employes~s Library Library
Pensionand Pensionand Retirement Nonexpendable Endowment Total

Relief Relief Benefit Trust E~g~ (MemorandumOnly)

Additions
Contributions:

Employer $ 366,404 $ 304,525 $ 608,039 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,278,968
Employee 160,887 121,069 494,797 -0- .0- 776,753
Insurancepremium taxallocation 431,434 412,356 -0- -0- -0- 843,790
Other 90,139 186.195 875.046 ...& -0- 1,151.380
Total contributions 1.048.864 L9~4,i45 1.977.882 ...Q. 4.050.891

Investmentincome:
Net appreciationin fair value
of investments 237,313 203,177 1,776,838 203 12 2,217,543
Interestanddividends 354.52k 199.385 -0- 1,210 13 555,134
Total investmentincome 59j,83~ 402,5~ j,776.838 1.413 ...25 2.772.677

Total additions 1,640,703 1.426.707 3.754.720 1.413 ..25 6.823.568

Deductions
Generalandadministrative 103,712 95,116 96,506 1,151 7 296,492
Benefitpayrnents 1.166.921 998.509 l.33526~ -0- ..Q 3.501.199

Total deductions 1,270.633 1.093.625 1.432.275 1.151 .....1 3,797.691

Netincrease 370,070 333,082 2,322,445 262 18 3,025,877
Netassets—beginningof year 10.257.182 6.440.897 25.759.627 43.388 42~ 42,501.587

Netassets— endof year $ 10.627.252 $ ~ $ ~ S ~ $ 511 $ 45.527A~4

The accompanying notes are an integralpartofthis statement.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

1. Summaryof SignificantAccountingPolicies

The CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia complieswith accountingprinciplesgenerally accepted in
theUnitedStatesofAmerica. TheCity’s reportingentity appliesall relevantGovernmental
AccountingStandards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds apply Financial
AccountingStandards Board(FASB) pronouncements andAccountingPrinciples Board (APB)
opinions issued onorbeforeNovember30, 1989,unlessthosepronouncementsconflict with or
contradictGASB pronouncements, in whichcase,GASB prevails.

TheremainderoftheNotesare organized to provide explanations,including requireddisclosures,
oftheCity’s financial activitiesfor the fiscal year endedJune30, 2005.

The CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia is incorporated under theprovisionsoftheStateofWest
Virginia. The City operates under aCouncil - Manager formof government and provides the
following services as authorized by itscharter: publicsafety (policeandfire), streets, sanitation,
water,waste,recreation, education, public improvements, planning and zoning, andgeneral
administrative services.

In June1999,the GovernmentAccountingStandardsBoard (GASB)unanimouslyapproved
StatementNo. 34, Basic Financial Statements— andManagement’sDiscussionandAnalysis— for
StateandLocal Governments. Certainofthe significant changes intheStatement include the
following:

The financial statements include:

A ManagementDiscussionandAnalysis (MD&A) sectionprovidingananalysisoftheCity’s
overall financialpositionand resultsofoperation.

Financial statementspreparedusing the full accountingfor all ofthe City’s activities,including
infrastructure(roads, bridges, etc.).

A changein thefundfinancial statements to focus on themajorfunds.

These and other changes arereflectedin the accompanying financial statements (including notes to
financialstatements).The Cityhaselected to implement thegeneralprovisionsoftheStatement
in the fiscal yearendedJune30, 2003.

28



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

BasicFinancialStatements— GovernmentWide Statements
TheCity’s basicfinancial statementsincludebothgovernment-wide (reporting the City as a whole)
andfundfinancial statements (reporting theCity’s majorfunds). Both thegovermnent-wideand
fund financialstatementscategorizeprimaryactivities as either governmentalorbusinesstype.
TheCity’s police and fire protection, parks,public works and general administrative services are
classifiedasgovernmentalactivities. TheCity’s airportparkingand building commissionare
classifiedasbusiness-typeactivities.

In thegovernment-wideStatementofNetAssets,boththe governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) arepresentedon a consolidated basis by column, (b) and arereportedon a
full accrual, economic resourcebasis,which recognizesall long-term assets andreceivablesas
well as long-term debt andobligations. TheCity’s netassets arereportedin threeparts— invested
in capitalassets, netofrelateddebt; restricted net assets; andunrestrictednetassets. TheCity
first utilizesrestricted resourcesto financequalifying activities.

The government-wide StatementofActivities reports both the gross and net costofeachofthe
City’s functionsandbusiness-typeactivities(police, fire, public works, etc.). The functions are
also supported by general govermnent revenues (taxes,certainintergovernmental revenues, fines,
permitsand charges, etc.). TheStatementofActivities reduces gross expenses (including
depreciation)by relatedprogramrevenues, operating andcapitalgrants. Program revenuesmust
be directly associatedwith the function(police,public works,etc.)ora business-typeactivity.
Operatinggrantsinclude operating-specific anddiscretionary(eitheroperatingorcapital) grants
while thecapital grantscolumnreflects capital-specificgrants.

The net costs (byfunctionorbusiness-type activity) arenormallycovered bygeneralrevenue
(taxes,intergovernmentalrevenues, interest income, etc.).

The Citydoesnotallocate indirectcosts. An administrativeservice feeis charged by theGeneral
Fundto the otheroperatingfunds thatis eliminated like areimbursement(reducing therevenue
and expense in the General Fund) to recover the directcostsof GeneralFundservicesprovided
(finance,personnel,purchasing,etc.).

This government-wide focusis more on the sustainabilityoftheCityasan entity and thechangein
theCity’s net assets resulting from the currentyear’sactivities.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

A summaryof thesignificant accountingpoliciesofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia, is
presentedbelow.

(a) ReportingEntity
TheCity’s financialstatementsinclude theoperationsofall organizationsfor whichthe
City Council exercisesoversight responsibility. Oversightresponsibilityis demonstrated
by financial interdependency,selectionofgoverningauthority,designationof
management, ability tosignificantly influence operations, andaccountabilityfor fiscal
matters.

(b) Government-WideFinancial Statements
The government-wide financial statementsreportinformation onall thenonfiduciary
activitiesofthegovernment.For themostpart,the effectof internalactivityhasbeen
removedfrom thesestatements.Governmentactivities, which normally are supported by
taxesandintergovernmental revenues, arereportedseparately from business-type
activities, which rely to significant extent onfeesandchargesfor support.

The StatementofActivities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expensesofa
givenfunctionor segment are offset byprogramrevenues.Directexpenses are those that
areclearlyidentifiable with aspecific functionor segment. Program revenues include (1)
charges to customersorapplicants whosepurchase,useordirectly benefit from goods,
servicesorprivileges provided by agivenfunctionorsegment and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted tomeetingtheoperationalorcapitalrequirementsofa
particularfunctionorsegment.Taxes andotheritemsnotproperlyincluded among
programrevenues are reportedinsteadas general revenues.

Separatefinancialstatementsareprovidedfor governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though thelatterareexcludedfrom the governmental-wide
statements. Major individual funds arereportedasseparate columns in thefund
statements.

(c) Measurement Focus andFinancialStatement Presentation— Government-Wide
Financial Statements
Fundsare classified into three categories:governmental,proprietary and fiduciary.Each
category,in turn,is divided into separate “fundtypes”. Governmentalfunds areusedto
accountfor governmental activities, where the focusofattentionis on theprovidingof
servicesto the public as opposed toproprietaryfunds where thefocusofattentionis on
recovering the costofprovidingservicesto thepublic through service chargesoruser
fees. Fiduciaryfunds areusedto accountforassetsheld by the City in atrusteeor agency
capacity. Thefundtypesusedby theCity of Morgantownare describedasfollows:
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

GovernmentalFundTypes
Genera/Fund:The GeneralFundis thegeneraloperatingfundofthemunicipality. It
is usedto accountfor all financial resources except thoserequiredto beaccountedfor
in another fund.

Specia/RevenueFunds: SpecialRevenueFunds areusedto accountfor theproceeds
of specificrevenue sources (otherthenspecialassessments,expendabletrusts,or
major capitalprojects)that are legallyrestrictedto expendituresfor capitalpurposes.

ProprietaryFund Types
EnterpriseFunds:Enterprise funds areusedto accountforoperations(a) that are

financed and operated in amannersimilar to private businessenterprises— where
theintent of the governing bodyis that thecosts(expensesincluding depreciation)
ofprovidinggoodsand services to thegeneral publicon a continuing basis be
financedorrecoveredprimarily throughusercharges;or(b) wherethegoverning
bodyhasdecidedthatperiodicdeterminationofrevenuesearned,expenses
incurred, and/or net incomeis appropriate for capital maintenance,public policy,
managementcontrol,accountability,orotherpurposes.

The Cityof Morgantownreports the followingmajorgovernmentalfunds:

The Boardof Parks and Recreation, Life and Health, Capital Reserve,Economic
Development Grant and General Fund.

Genera]Fund: The General Fundis thegeneraloperating fundofthemunicipality.

The CityofMorgantown reports thefollowing majorproprietaryfunds:

The Airport Fund, the ParkingAuthorityFundand theBuilding CommissionFund.

(d) FundsandAccountGroups— FundFinancialStatements
The accountsofthe City are organized into funds and account groups,eachofwhich is
consideredto be aseparateaccountingentity. Themajorfundcategories andaccount
groups for the fund financial statements are:
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

GovernmentalFund Types
Governmental funds are accountedfor usingthe current financial resourcesmeasurement
focus. Only currentassets andcurrentliabilities are generallyincludedon theirbalance
sheets.Their operating statementspresentsources and usesofavailable resources
during agivenperiod.

GeneralFund: The GeneralFundis thegeneraloperatingfundofthe
municipality. It is usedto accountfor all financial resources except
thoserequiredto be accountedfor in anotherfund.

SpecialRevenueFunds:Special Revenue Funds areusedto account
for the proceedsofspecificrevenuesources (other than special
assessments, expendable trusts,ormajorcapital projects) that are
legally restricted to expendituresfor specifiedpurposes.

Capita]ProjectFunds: CapitalProjectFunds areusedto accountfor
financialresourcesto be usedfor the acquisitionorconstructionof
majorcapital facilities which arenot financed byProprietaryFunds.

ProprietaryFundTypes
Proprietaryfundsare accountedfor usingthe economic resourcesmeasurementfocus;
the accounting objectivesare determinationofnet income,financial position,and cash
flows. All assets and liabilities associated with a proprietaryfund’s activities are
includedon its balancesheet

EnterpriseFunds: Enterprise Funds areusedto accountfor operations
(a) that are financed andoperatedin amannersimilar toprivate
businessenterprises- where the intentofthe governingbodyis that
thecosts(expenses,including depreciation)ofprovidinggoods and
servicesto thegeneralpublic on a continuing basis be financedor
recoveredprimarily throughusercharges;or(b) wherethegoverning
body has decided that periodicdeterminationofrevenuesearned,
expensesincurred,and/ornet incomeis appropriate forcapital
maintenance, publicpolicy, management control, accountability,or
otherpurposes.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciaryfundsaccount forassetsheldby the City in a trusteeoragencycapacity.
Fiduciaryfundsare accountedfor in essentiallythe samemannerasproprietaryfunds.

(e) Cash
For purposesofthestatementof cashflows, the Cityconsiderscash to be cash and cash
equivalents.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

(f) Receivables

All receivablesare shownnetofallowancefor uncollectibles.

(g) Property,Plant andEquipment

FundFinancialStatements
The accounting andreportingtreatment applied to the property,plantandequipmentand
long-termliabilities associatedwith a fundaredeterminedby its measurementfocus.
The CityofMorgantownrecords the purchaseofproperty, plant andequipmentusedin
governmentalfundtype operations asexpendituresin thegovernmentalfunds.
Depreciationhasbeenprovidedover theestimateduseful lives using thestraight-line
method. Theestimateduseful lives are asfollows:

Buildings and improvements 20- 50 years
Infrastructure 20 - 65 years
Machineryand equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 8 - 10 years

All proprietary funds andtrustfunds are accountedfor on a costof servicesor“capital
maintenance”measurementfocus. This means that all assets andall liabilities (whether
currentornoncurrent) associatedwith theiractivity areincludedon the balancesheets.
Thereportedfundequity (nettotal assets)is segregatedinto contributedcapital and
retained earningscomponents. Proprietaryfund type operatingstatementspresent
increase(revenues) anddecreases(expenses)in net total assets.

Depreciationof all exhaustibleproperty,plant andequipmentusedby theproprietary
fundsis chargedas anexpenseagainsttheiroperations.Accumulateddepreciation is
reported onproprietaryfundbalancesheets.Depreciationhasbeenprovidedover the
estimated useful lives using thestraightline method. Theestimateduseful lives are as
follows:

Buildings 25 -50years
Improvements 10 -20years
Utility plant 10 - 20 years
Equipment 5 - 25 years

Government-WideFinancial Statements
The government-widefinancialstatementsofthe CityofMorgantownare accountedfor
on a costofserviceor“capital maintenance”measurementfocus. This means thatall
assets andall liabilities (whethercurrentornoncurrent) associatedwith theiractivity are
includedon thestatementofnet assets.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Depreciationofall exhaustible property, plant and equipmentis chargedas anexpense
againstoperations.Accumulateddepreciationis reportedon the statementsofnet assets.
Depreciationhasbeenprovidedovertheestimateduseful lives using thestraightline
method. Theestimateduseful lives are as follows:

GovernmentalFunds

Buildings andimprovements 20 - 50 years
Infrastructure 20- 65 years
Machineryandequipment 5 - 25 years
Vehicles 5 years

ProprietaryFunds

Buildings 25 - 50 years
Improvements 10 - 20 years
Utility plant 10 - 20 years
Equipment 5 -25years

(h) BasisofAccounting

Fund Financial Statements

ModifiedAccrualBasisofAccounting
The Cityusedthe modified accrual basisofaccountingfor governmentalfundtypes.
The modified accrual basisofaccounting recognizesrevenueswhenboth“measurable
andavailable.” Measurablemeans that amount can be determined. Available means
collectiblewithin the currentperiodorsoon enoughthereafterto paycurrentliabilities.
Also,under the modified accrual basisofaccounting,expenditures arerecordedwhen
therelatedfundliability is incurred.

Major revenue sourcessusceptibleto accrualinclude: business& occupationtax,
hotel/motel tax, wine tax, liquor tax,propertytaxes, fire servicefees, intergovernmental
revenues, and investment income.

AccrualBasisofAccounting
Theaccrualbasisofaccountingis usedin proprietaryfundtypesand the pensiontrust
funds. The accrual basisofaccountingrecognizedrevenues when earned. Expenses
arerecordedwhenincurred. Plan member contributionsto thepensiontrust funds are
recognizedin theperiodin whichthe contributions aredue. Employer contributions to
theplan are recognizedwhendue and the Cityhasmade a formalcommitmentto
providethecontributions. Benefitsandrefundsarerecognizedwhendue and payable
in accordancewith the termsofthe plan.
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Government-WideFinancialStatements
The government-wide financial statements arereportedusing theeconomicresources
measurementfocus and theaccrualbasisofaccounting, as aretheproprietaryfunds
(when appropriate) andfiduciary fundfinancialstatements.Revenuesarerecorded
whenearned and expenses arerecordedwhen a liability is incurred, regardlessofthe
timing ofrelatedcashflows. Property taxes arerecognizedasrevenuesin theyearin
which they arelevied. Grants and similaritemsarerecognizedasrevenues assoonas
all eligibility requirements imposed by theproviderhave been met.

Governmentalfundfinancial statements arereportedusing thecurrentfinancial resources
measurementfocus and the modified accrual basisof accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as theyarebothmeasurable andavailable. Revenues areconsidered
to be available whentheyarecollectiblewithin thecurrentperiodor soonenough
thereafterto pay liabilitiesofthecurrentperiod. Forthispurpose,thegovernment
considersrevenues to beavailableif they are collected within 60 daysafterthe endof
thecurrentfiscal year. Expendituresgenerallyarerecordedwhena liability is incurred,
as under accrualaccounting. However, debt service expenditures, as wellas
expendituresrelatedto compensated absences arerecordedonly whenpaymentis due.

Taxes,grants andinterestassociated with the current fiscalperiodareall consideredto
be susceptibleto accrual and so have beenrecognizedas revenuesofthecurrentfiscal
period. All otherrevenueitemsareconsideredto be measurable and available only
when cashis receivedby thegovernment.

(i) Fund Equity
In the fundfinancial statements, governmental fundsreportreservationsoffundbalancefor
amountsthat are not available for appropriationorare legallyrestrictedby outside parties
forusefor specificpurpose.Designationsoffundbalancerepresents tentative
management plans that are subject tochange.

(j) BudgetsandBudgetary Accounting
All municipalitieswithin WestVirginia, arerequiredby statute toprepareannual budgets
(levy estimates)on prescribedformsfor the General and CoalSeveranceFunds and
submitthesefor approval to theStateAuditor. These budgets arepreparedin accordance
with the following procedures:

1. The governing bodyofthemunicipalityis requiredto hold ameeting
or meetingsbetweenthe seventh andtwenty-eighthdaysof March to
ascertain the financial conditionofthemunicipalityand toprepare
the levy estimate (budget)forthefiscal yearcommencingJuly 1.
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2. Thebudgetis thenforthwith submitted to theStateAuditor for
approval.

3. Thegovôrningbodythenreconvenes on thethird Tuesdayin April to
hearobjections from the public and to formally lay thelevy.

Revisions are authorized only with theprior writtenapprovalofthe State Auditors office.
Thebudgetedamountsreflectedin the accompanying fmancial statements aresuch
approvedamounts.

A) Unusedappropriationsfor all ofthe above annuallybudgetedfunds lapse at
the yearend.

B) The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are thefinal authorized
amounts as revised during the year.

(k) Encumbrances— Fund Financial Statements
Encumbrance accounting isusedfor the General Fund andspecialrevenuefunds.
Encumbrances arerecordedwhenpurchase orders are issued but are notconsidered
expenditures until liabilitiesforpaymentsare incurred.Encumbrancesarereportedas a
reservationoffundbalance on thebalancesheet.Encumbrancesdo not lapse at the close
ofthe fiscal yearbut are carriedforwardasreservedfundbalance untilliquidated.

(1) Cash,Cash Equivalentsand Investments
Cash on hand and depositswith banking institutions either incheckingor savingsaccounts
arepresentedas cash and cashequivalentin the accompanying financialstatements.

Statestatutesauthorize the government toinvestin theStateInvestment Poolorthe
Municipal Bond Commissionorto investsuchfunds in the following classesofsecurities:
ObligationsoftheUnitedStatesoranyagencythereof, certificatesofdeposit (which
mature inlessthan one year),generaland direct obligationsofthe stateofWest Virginia;
obligationsofthefederalnational mortgage association; indebtedness secured by first lien
deedoftrustsforproperty situatedwithin this stateif the paymentis substantially insured
orguaranteed by thefederalgovernment;pooledmortgagetrusts(subjectto limitations);
indebtednessofany private corporation thatis properly graded as in thetop two orthree
highestratinggrades;interest earning deposits which are fully insuredorcollateralized;
and mutual funds registered with theS.E.C.which havefundassets over threehundred
million dollars.

36



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Statestatutelimitations concerning the aforementioned investments includethefollowing:
at no time caninvestmentportfoliosconsistofmore than seventy-fivepercentofthe
indebtednessof any private corporationnorcan the portfolio have over twenty-five
percentof its portfolio consistingofthe indebtednessofa privatecorporation’sdebt which
maturesin lessthan one year; atno time may more than nine percentofthe portfolio be
investedin securitiesissued by a single private corporationorassociation; and at no time
can morethansixtypercentofthe portfolio beinvestedin equity mutual funds.

Municipal Pension Funds are governed as to typeofinvestments byWestVirginia Code
§ 8-22-22. Pension funds arepermittedto invest inall ofthe abovementionedtypesof
investments with the exceptionsof(1)Direct andgeneralobligationsofthe state and (2)
Pooled mortgagetrusts. Additionally, pensionfunds arepermittedto investfunds in the
following categoriesofinvestments: (1) Repurchase agreements and (2)Commonstock,
securitiesconvertible into commonstocks,orwarrants and rights to purchasessuch
securities.Pensionfundshave different rulesconcerningthe purchaseofmarketabledebt
securities.

The following restrictions apply only topensionportfolio’s and are separate and distinct.
from the limitationsmentionedabove: (1) fixedincomesecurities which are issued by one
issuer (with the exceptionofthe UnitedStatesgovermnent)are not toexceedtenpercent
ofthe total assetsofthe totalpensionfundassets;and(2) atno time can the equity portion
ofthe portfolio exceed fiftypercentofthe totalportfolio.

(m) Inventories
The municipalityconsidersinventoriesofmaterialsand supplies utilized ingov~rnmenta1
fundtypes operations asexpendedat the timeofpurchase therefore, they donotappearin
themunicipality’s financial statements. Inventoriesofmaterialsand suppliesutilized in
the proprietaryfundtypeoperation,are consideredexpendedat the timeofconsumption;
therefore,balances on hand at yearend,valuedat cost (first-in, first-out) arepresentedin
themunicipality’sfinancialstatements.

(n) Amortization
Debtdiscountand expense onbondsis amortizedon the straight-line method from thedate
ofissuance to the dateofmaturity. Amortizationofdebtdiscountand issue costsfor
fiscal yearendedJune30, 2005was$62,908.
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(o) CompensatedAbsences
The liability for compensated absencesreportedin the government-wide financial
statementsconsistsofunpaid,accumulatedannual sick and accruedvacations.The
liability hasbeen calculated using thevestingmethod, in which leave amountsfor both
employeeswho currentlyare eligible to receiveterminationpaymentsandotheremployees
who are expected to becomeeligible in thefuture to receive suchpaymentupon
termination areincluded.

AccumulatedSickLeave
Municipal employeesreceive paymentof 1/3 ofthe accumulated sick leave in excessof

720hours. The paymentfor sick leaveis calculated at currenthourlyrates and ispaidin
Juneofeachfiscal year. Terminated and retiringemployeeshiredbefore June15, 1993
are entitled to receivepaymentfor 2 oftheiraccumulated sick leave,up to the amount
accrued asofJune15, 1993, uponcessationofemployment. Employeeshiredafterthat
datedo not receivepaymentfor accumulatedsick leave atcessationof employment.
Thisportionofthe sick leave attributable to governmental fundsis recognized in the
general long-term debt account group.

(p) Self Insurance
The Cityis self-insured for employees life and health benefits. The operating funds are
charged premiums by theCity insurance fund, whichis accountedfor as aspecialrevenue
fundfund. Thefundbalancehasbeenreservedfor paymentoffuture claims includingany
claims incurred and not yetreportedatJune30, 2005.

(q) PensionPlans
The City providesseparatedefined benefit pension plansforuniformedpolice and fire

departmentpersonnel. Itis theCity’s policy to fund the normal cost andamortizationof
the unfundedprior service cost.

All eligible employeesofBOPARC and the library are covered under the WestVirginia
Public Employee RetirementSystemdueto theCity’s electingto be a participating public
employer. All other eligible employeesare covered under the CityofMorgantown
Retirement and Benefit Fund.

(r) UseofEstimates
Thepreparationof financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
acceptedin the UnitedStatesofAmerica requires management tomakeestimates and
assumptions that affect thereportedamountsofassets and liabilities and disclosureof
contingent assets and liabilities at the dateof the financial statementsandthereported
amountsofrevenues and expenses during thereportingperiod. Actual resultscoulddiffer
from those estimates.
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(s) Interfund Activity
Interfund activityis reportedas eitherloans,services provided,reimbursementsor
transfers.Loansarereportedasinterfundreceivables andpayablesasappropriateandare
subjectto elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed tobeatmarketor
near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses.Reimbursements
arewhenonefundincurs acost,charges the appropriatebenefitingfundandreducesits
relatedcost as areimbursement.All other interfundtransactions aretreatedas transfers.
Transfersbetweengovernmentalorproprietary funds are netted aspartofthe
reconciliationto the government-wide financialstatements.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmentalfundbalance sheet includes areconciliationbetweenfundbalance— total
governmental funds and net assets— governmental activities asreportedon thegovernment-wide
statementofnetassets. The governmental fundstatementofrevenues, expenditures, andchanges
in fundbalanceincludes areconciliationbetweennetchanges infundbalances— total
governmentalfundand changes in net assetsofgovernmental activities asreportedin the
government— wide statementofactivities. The individual elementsofthosereconciliationsare
included with thestatements.

3. DepositsandInvestments

The Cityreportingentityconsidershighly liquid investments with an originalmaturityofthree
monthsor lesswhenpurchasedto be cash equivalents. Exceptions include the Cityof
Morgantown, WestVirginia’s Policemen’sPension andReliefFundand theFiremen’sPension and
ReliefFund which classify only cash as cash equivalents in order to appropriatelyreportinvestment
activity.

Deposits
It is theCity’s policy for deposits to be 100% secured by collateralvaluedat marketorpar,
whicheveris lower, lessthe amountofthe Federal Deposit InsuranceCorporationinsurance.
TheCity’s depositsarecategorizedto give an indicationofthe levelofrisk assumedby theCity
at June30, 2005. The categories aredescribedasfollows:

Category1 - Insuredorcollateralizedwith securitiesheldby the entity or by itsagentin theentity’s
name.

Category2 - Collateralizedwith securitiesheld bythepledging financialinstitution’strust
departmentoragentin theentity’s name.

Category3 - Uncollateralized.
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Bank Category Carrying
Non-PooledDeposits Balance 2 3 Amount

GeneralFund $ 1,298,022 $ 1,298,022 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,104,119
SpecialRevenueFunds 1,518,359 1,518,359 -0- -0- 1,512,688
Capital ProjectFunds 685,283 685,283 -0- -0- 681,655
Enterprise Funds 481.837 481,837 520,324

Total deposits $ 3.983.501 $ 3,983,501 $ ~ $ Q $ 3,818,786

Bank Category Carrying

Balance I ~. Amount

FiduciaryFunds $ 114.349 $ 114.349 $ ~ $ Q $ 1636

Investments
Investment pools are under the custodyoftheCity. Investingis performedin accordancewith

investment policiescomplyingwith StateStatutesand the CityCharter. Pooled fundsmaybe
investedin theStateInvestmentPool orthe Municipal BondCommissionfor investment
purposes,or investedin the following classesofsecurities: Commercialpaper ratedA-i by
Standard& Poor’sCorporationorP-i by Moody’sCommercial Paper Record,bankers’
acceptances,repurchaseagreements and reverserepurchaseagreements.Thepensiontrust fund
is also authorized to invest in corporatebondsratedAA orbetterby Standard& Poor’s
CorporationorAA orbetter byMoody’s BondRating.

Statestatutesauthorize the government toinvestin the StateInvestment PoolortheMunicipal
BondCommissionorto investsuchfunds in the following classesofsecurities: Obligationsof
the UnitedStatesorany agency thereof, certificatesof deposit(which mature in lessthanone
year),generaland directobligationsofthe stateofWestVirginia; obligationsof the federal
national mortgage association; indebtednesssecuredby first lien deedoftrustsforproperty
situatedwithin this stateif the paymentis substantially insuredorguaranteedby the federal
government;pooledmortgage trusts(subjectto limitations); indebtednessofany private
corporation thatis properlygraded as in the toptwo or threehighestratinggrades;interest
earning deposits which are fully insuredorcollateralized; and mutual funds registeredwith the
S.E.C.which havefundassets overthreehundredmillion dollars.
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Statestatute limitations concerning the aforementioned investments include thefollowing: at no
time can investmentportfoliosconsistofmore thanseventy-fivepercentofthe indebtednessof
any privatecorporationnorcan the portfolio have over twenty-five percentof its portfolio
consistingoftheindebtednessofa privatecorporation’sdebt whichmaturesin lessthanone
year;at no time maymorethanninepercentof the portfolio beinvestedin securitiesissuedby a
single private corporationorassociation; and at no time canmorethan sixtypercentofthe
portfolio be investedin equitymutualfunds.

Municipal Pension Funds are governed as to typeofinvestmentsby WestVirginia Code
§ 8-22-22. Pension funds arepermittedto invest inall ofthe abovementionedtypesof
investments with the exceptionsof(l) Direct andgeneralobligationsofthestateand (2)Pooled
mortgagetrusts. Additionally, pensionfundsarepermittedto invest funds in the following
categoriesofinvestments:(1) Repurchaseagreementsand (2)Commonstock,securities
convertible into commonstocks,orwarrants and rights topurchasessuchsecurities.Pension
funds have different rules concerning the purchaseofmarketable debt securities.

The following restrictions apply only to pensionportfolio’s and are separate and distinct from the
limitations mentioned above: (1) fixedincomesecuritieswhich are issued by one issuer(with
the exceptionoftheUnitedStatesgovernment)are not to exceedtenpercentofthe totalassets
ofthe total pensionfundassets;and (2)atno time can the equityportionofthe portfolioexceed
fifty percentofthe totalportfolio.

TheCity’s investments are categorized to give an indicationofthe levelofrisk assumed by the
City atJune30, 2005. The categories aredescribedasfollows:

Category1 - Insuredorregistered,orsecuritiesheld by the Cityor its agent in theCity’s name.

Category2- Uninsuredandunregistered,with securitiesheld by thecounterparty’strust
departmentoragent in theCity’s name.

Category3 - Uninsuredandunregistered,with securities held by thecounterparty,orby its trust
departmentor agent but not in theCity’s name.
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Category Market
TypeofInvestments I Value

Money Market $ 1,791,398 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,791,398 $ 1,791,398
Mutual Funds 518,213 -0- -0- 518,213 474,087
U.S.GovernmentObligations 232,507 -0- -0- 232,507 223,318
CorporateStocksand Bonds 675,501 -0- -0- 675,501 608,518
CertificatesofDeposit 1,788,534 -0- -0- 1,788.534 1,788.534

Total investments $ 5.006.153. $ Qz $ 4 5,006,153 4,885,855

Investments in municipal
bond commission 800,555 800,555

Total investments $ ~~6.708 $ ~86.4l0

Investments reported on financial statement as follows:

Investments $ 4,151,783
Restricted assets 1.654,925

$ 5,806.708

Fiduciary Funds
Category Market

TypeofInvestments I Value Cost

Money Market $ 1,064,678 $ -0- $ -0- $ 1,064,678 $ 1,064,678
CertificatesofDeposit -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
U.S. Government Obligations 19,526,123 -0- -0- 19,526,123 19,505,146
Corporate Stocks and Bonds 24,356,420 -0- -0- 24,356,420 20,915,811
Mutual Funds 415,591 -0- -0- 415,591 343,465

Total investments $ 45.362.812 $ Q $ ~ $ 45.362.812 $ 41.829.100

Credit Risk: Statelaw limits investmentsin corporate debt to commercialpaper ratedAA orbetter
by Standard & Poor’s Corporation or AAor better by Moody’s Bond Rating.
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Interest Risk: Theinvestmentsare at riskofdeclinesin market value due tointerestraterisk.

CustodialCredit Risk: TheCity’s investments were 100%insuredby brokerage insuranceand were
notsubject tocustodialcreditrisk,

Investments arepresentedin the financialstatementsattheirquoted marketvaluesat June30, 2005.
The following is a summaryofinvestmentsheldat costoramortized cost, andmarketfor theyear
endedJune30, 2005.

3,961.165
4,278.392
1,257.972

953.796
2,836.587
3,651.302
3, 145 .740
5,978.698
2,490.126
7,438.181
7,043.754

$ 1.791.398

$ 42,925
36,550
12,132

18,952
59,000
46,268
30,985
29,928
43,204
92,011
62,132

$ 1.791.398

$ 57,556
45,736
22,681

18,504
60,674
46,700
31,143
31,866
46,939
93,795
62,619

$ 474.087 $ 518.213

Shares or
ParValue Cost Market

136,355.520 $ 136,356 $ 136,356
329,637.000 329,637 329,637

2,393.720 2,394 2,394
19,044.620 19,045 19,045

361,284.580 361,285 361,285
35,350.000 35,350 35,350

854,370.000 854,370 854,370
52,961.490 52,961 52,961

Securities

Investments— Cash Equivalent
UnitedBank, Inc. Liquid Asset Fund
HuntingtonMoneyMarket Fund IV
WesbancoMoneyMarket
EvergreenMoneyMarketFundClassSi
PrudentialMoneyMarket
WachoviaSecuritiesMoneyMarket
WesbancoPrimeObligationsFund396
CitizensMoneyMarket

Mutual Funds
Huntington Mid Corp America Fund III
Huntington International Equity Fund III
Huntington Situs Small Cap Fund III
Huntington Short and IntermediateFixed
Income Fund III

Huntington Fixed Income Securities Fund ifi
Dodge & Cox Income Fund #147
Wesmark Bond Fund #556
Federated Kaufmann FundCl A #066
VanguardStarFund#56
WesmarkGrowthFund#549
WesmarkBalanced Fund#559
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Certificates ofDeposit
CentraBank4.10%matures12/20/05
BranchBanking& Trust, 2.75%
Centra Bank2.467% matures 9/2/05
CentraBank4.10%
Citizens BankofMorgantown3.02%
matures 12/17/05

$ 1.788.534 $ 1.788.534

Securities
Sharesor
ParValue Market

500,000.000 $ 500,000 $ 500,000
524,511.000 524,511 524,511
237,000.000 237,000 237,000
311,306.000 311,306 311,306

215,717.000 215.717 215.717

CorporateStocksandBonds
Alitel Corp 100.000 $ 5,207 $ 6,228
Amgen,Inc. 100.000 3,966 6,046
ApacheCorporation 100.000 3,918 6,460~
Applied MatlsInc. 500.000 7,999 8,O90~
AutomaticDataProcessingInc. 100.000 4,375 4,197
BPAmocoPLC 100.000 5,336 6,238
Bank AmericaCorp 470.000 17,169 21,437
Dow ChemicalCompany 220.000 6,636 8,906
Exxon Mobil Corp 150.000 6,600 8,620
FortuneBrandsInc. 50.000 3,540 4,440
General Electric Company 150.000 6,034 5,197
Kohls Corporation 100.000 7,170 5,591
LinearTechnologyCorp 252.000 7,764 9,246
MedtronicInc 200.000 7,469 10,358
Merck & Co Inc. 156.000 9,806 4,805
Merrill Lynch & Co. 75.000 4,683 4,126
Microsoft Corp 200.000 8,421 4,968
Newell Rubbermaid Inc. 150.000 3,954 3,576
Oracle Corp 400.000 3,649 5,280
Pepsico Inc. 100.000 5,198 5,393

Pfizerlnc. 200.000 7,172 5,516
Procter&GambleCo. 100.000 5,181 5,275
SimonPptyGroupInc. 22.000 1,244 1,595
Simon Ppty 6.00% Series Convertible Preferred 22.000 1,182 1,364
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Shares or
Securities ParValue Cost Market

Sysco Corp 100.000 $ 3,891 $ 3,619
WalMart Stores,Inc. 75.000 4.407 3,615
WashingtonMutualInc. 200.000 7,021 8,138
AmericanExpressCo 200.000 11,294 10,646
American Intl Group 100.000 8,585 5,810
BankofAmerica Corp 200.000 7,277 9,122
Citigroup Inc. 260.000 10,710 12,020
Goldman Sachs GroupInc. 100.000 11,093 10,202
Hartford.FinancialSvcsGroup Inc. 150.000 9,488 11,217
J. P.MorganChase& Co. 300.000 11,604 10,596
St. PaulTravelers Companies 300.000 11,277 11,859
WellsFargo&Co. 200.000 8,702 12,316
Sprint CorpFan Common Stock 300.000 6,900 7,527
VerizonCommunications 183.000 9,540 6,323
Abbott Laboratories 300.000 5,747 14,703
MedtronicInc. 200.000 9,919 10,358
PfizerInc. 500.000 1,382 13,790
AvonProductsInc 200.000 8,535 7,570
PepsicoInc 200.000 9,388 10,786
Procter& GambleCo. 200.000 9,258 10,550
Sysco Corp 200.000 7,590 7,238
Walgreen Co. 200.000 8,828 9,198
Comcast Corp Cl A 145.000 6,695 4,447
FortuneBrands Inc. 120.000 9,350 10,656
Liberty MediaCorp A 1,000.000 8,439 10,190
McGraw-Hill Companies,Inc. 250,000 2,776 11,062
Staples Inc. 450.000 9,438 9,580
First Data Corp 200.000 8,634 8,028
Intel Corp 600.000 16,733 15,612
IBM Corp 150.000 12,921 11,130
Lexmark International Inc Cl-A 100.000 9,382 6,483
Microsoft Corp 500.000 12,347 12,420
Nokia CorpADR 300.000 4,831 4,992
Oracle Corporation 500.000 12,404 6,600
EmersonElectric Co 150.000 7,261 9,394
FedexCorp 100.000 7,005 8,101
GeneralDynamicsCorp 100.000 7,913 10,954
GeneralElectricCompany 400.000 12,985 13,860
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Shares or
Securities Par Value Market

Masco Corp 250.000 $ 8,038 $ 7,940
Conocophillips 300.000 11,807 17,247
Exxon Mobil Corp 200.000 10,038 11,494
Marathon OilCorp 150.000 5,655 8,006
Occidential PetroleumCorp 150.000 11,081 11,539
PPG IndustriesInc 300.000 6,974 18,828
FPLGroupInc. 400.000 12,545 16,824
TevaPharmaceuticalInds ADR 400.000 10,992 12,456
Wellpoint Inc. 100.000 6,318 6,964
First UnionCorp 7% matures 3/15/2006 20,000.000 19,920 20,395
FordMotor Credit Co 6.25%matures12/8/05 30,000.000 29.927 30,144

$ 608.518 $ 675.501

U.S.Treasury Obligations
Federated Government UltrashortFund 25,125.628 $ 50,000 $ 49,749
Federated Ultrashort Bond Fund #108 13,227.513 25,000 24,735
FHLMC 6.625% matures 9/15/2009 50,000.000 49,091 55,047
U.S. Treasury N/B6.125%matures 8/15/07 50,000.000 49,711 52,511
U.S. Treasury N/B5.875%matures11/15/05 50,000.000 49,516 50.465

$ 223.318 $ 232.507

Fiduciary Funds

Investments— Cash Equivalent
Wesbanco PrimeObligationsFund10 10.000 $ 10 $ 10
Huntington MoneyMarketFund IV 880.270 880 880
Smith Barney Money Funds Cash PortCl A 411,115.000 411,113 411,113
B B & T PrimeMoneyMarketFund #30 652,675.000 652,675 652,675

$ 1.064.6i78~$ 1.064.678
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Shares or
Securities ParValue Market

Mutual Funds
Dodge&Cox IncomeFund#147 6.235 $ 81 $ 80
WesmarkBondFund#556 5.151 52 51
FederatedKauffirnim Fund Cl A#066 10.537 54 56
Vanguard StarFund#56 5.031 89 95
Wesmark Growth Fund #549 11.978 155 151
Wesmark Balanced Fund #559 7.659 69 68
Huntington Dividend Capture Fund III 798.580 9,000 9,152
HuntingtonIncomeEquity FundIII 367.872 12,000 12,250
HuntingtonFixedIncomeSecuritiesFund III 762.268 16,000 16,305
HuntingtonIntermediate Government
Income Fund III 482.160 5,000 5,063
Hancock John Bk & Tr Opportunity 26,000.000 224,893 255,320
SalomonBrothers FundInc 9,000.000 76,072 1 17.0O0~

$ 343.465 $ 415.591

Corporate Stocks and Bonds
Seagate Technology 1,900.000 $ 35,020 $ 33,345
A T & T Corp 1,875.000 34,476 35,700
AlbertsonsInc Delaware 1,770.000 39,002 36,603
Alltel CorpDelaware 655.000 36,133 40,793
Altria GroupInc. 535.000 27,821 34,593
BankofAmericaCorp 715.000 29,838 32,611
ChevronCorp 605.000 27,451 33,831
ConagraFoodsInc 1,315.000 33,540 30,455
Conocophillips 660.000 23,937 37,943
DTE EnergyCompany 745.000 31,933 34,843
DeluxeCorp 840.000 33,582 34,104
Dow ChemicalCo 665.000 30,052 29,612
DukeRealtyCorp 1,160.000 36,965 36,726
FreeportMcMoranCopper& Gold Cl B 900.000 34,146 33,696
Glaxosmithidine PLCSpADR 695.000 30,538 33,714
HewlettPackardCo 1,525.000 30,660 35,853
JP Morgan Chase& Co 1,015.000 37,403 35,850
Jefferson Pilot Corp 760.000 37,402 38,319
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Sharesor
Securities ParValue Cost Market

KeycorpNew 2,230.000 $ 67,247 $ 73,925
KeyspanCorp 930.000 34,923 37,851
Kimberly ClarkCorp 500.000 30,418 31,295
Limited BrandsInc. 1,385.000 27,319 29,667
Lincoln NationalCorp 705.000 29,617 33,079
Lyondell Chemical Company 1,475.000 36,123 38,970
MBNA Corp 1,425.000 35,573 37,278
MarathonOil Corp 1,350.000 54,197 72,049
MayDepartmentStoresCo. 925.000 26,296 37,148
Merck & Co Inc. 2,275.000 75,571 70,070
MorganStanley 595.000 31,576 31,220
NorthropGrummanCorp 650.000 36,032 35,912
OccidentalPetroleumCorp 490.000 24,167 37,696
PetrochinaCoLtdADR 575.000 36,681 42,234
Petrobras 675.000 30,758 35,l88~
PfizerInc. 1,385.000 38,052 38,198
Progress EnergyInc. 850.000 37,553 38,454
Regions Financial Corp 2,190.000 72,746 74,197
ReynoldsAmericanInc. 425.000 25,081 33,490
St. PaulTravelersCosInc. 960.000 35,940 37,949
Sempra Energy 905.000 29,374 37,386
StanleyWorks 770.000 33,479 35,066
VFCorp 625.000 33,918 35,763
VerizonCommunications 1,010.000 37,276 34,896
WashingtonMutualInc. 1,800.000 72,523 73,242
Whirlpool Corp 1,115.000 73,153 78,173
Aflac Inc 408.000 15,373 17,658
Abbott Laboratories 430.000 19,950 21,074
AmgenInc 373.000 21,940 22,552
ApacheCorp 343.000 20,676 22,158
Best BuyInc. 366.000 19,457 25,089
CaremarkRx Inc 374.000 14,713 16,650
CiscoSys Inc 877.000 15,715 16,733
Citigroup Inc 267.000 11,959 12,343
Dell Inc 521.000 20,012 20,559
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Shares or
Securities ParValue Market

EbayInc 441.000 $ 15,921 $ 14,557
Electronic Arts 206.000 11,138 11,662
EmersonElectricCo 382.000 25,067 23,925
ExxonMobil Corp 416.000 24,286 23,908
FiservInc 398.000 15,466 17,070
GenentechInc 316.000 18,268 25,368
General ElectricCo 831.000 29,850 28,794
Home DepotInc 488.000 18,788 18,983
Illinois Tool WorksInc 287.000 25,579 22,868
Intel Corp 593.000 13,823 15,430
Intl Business Machines Corp 139.000 12,645 10,314
Johnson& Johnson 189.000 12,843 12,285
MaximIntegratedProdsInc 360.000 14,738 13,759
McGraw Hill CosInc 414.000 18,034 18,320~
MedtronicInc 536.000 27,845 27,759~
Microsoft Corp 858.000 20,746 21,313
PepsicoInc 346.000 18,141 18,660
PraxairInc 354.000 16,953 16,496
Procter& GambleCo 307.000 16,056 16,194
StaplesInc 895.000 18,515 19,055
StarbucksCorp 301.000 14,747 15,550
Sysco Corp 666.000 24,003 24,103
TargetCorp 448.000 22,772 24,376
TevaPharmaceuticalIndsLtd ADR 826.000 25,385 25,722
UnitedParcel ServiceCl B 2 14.000 15,513 14,800
WalMart StoresInc 460.000 23,533 22,172
WalgreenCo New 384.000 17,138 17,660
WellsFargo&CoNew 350.000 20,786 21,553
ZebraTechnologiesInc Cl A 241.000 11,023 10,553
ZimmerHoldingsInc 279.000 22,705 21,252
Altria GroupInc. 1,540.000 83,545 99,576
AmericanExpressCo 1,920.000 97,820 102,202
American Intl GroupInc 1,720.000 101,827 99,932
Aon Corp 585.000 12,650 14,648
AutozoneInc 160.000 13,852 14,794
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Sharesor
Securities ParValue Cost Market

Berkshire HathawayInc ClassB 26.000 $ 70,112 $ 72,371
H & RBlock Inc 680.000 32,675 39,678
CardinalHealthInc 390.000 19,438 22,456
Citigroup Inc 1,185.000 55,008 54,783
Comcast CorpCl A — SPL 2,165.000 65,741 64,842
Conocophillips 1,060.000 42,013 60,939
CostcoWholesaleCorpNew 1,380.000 56,830 61,727
DevonEnergy CorpNew 945.000 33,604 47,893
DiageoPLC Span ADR— New 450.000 23,399 26,685
Dun & BradstreetCorpNew 150.000 6,539 9,248
Eog ResourcesInc. 800.000 24,728 45,440
Fifth ThirdBancorp 460.000 24,538 18,938
GoldenWestFinl Corp 1,045.000 62,415 67,277
HCA Inc 575.000 23,044 32,585
HSBC HoldingPLC Sp ADR 802.000 62,779 63,879
HarleyDavidsonInc. 310.000 15,486 15,376
Hershey Company 310.000 14,593 19,251
IronMountainInc 830.000 24,890 25,747
J P MorganChase& Co 2,264.000 78,544 79,964
Lexmark Intl GroupInc Cl A 265.000 20,713 17,180
Eli Lilly & Co 290.000 17,745 16,156
Lloyds TSB GrpPLC Sp ADR 425.000 13,467 14,471
Loews Corp 500.000 27,834 38,750
Marsh& McLennan CosInc 575.000 20,176 15,928
MicrosoftCorp 670.000 18,270 16,643
Moody’s Corporation 580.000 19,874 26,077
MorganStanley 270.000 14,218 14,167
OccidentalPetroleumCorp 680.000 35,895 52,312
ProgressiveCorp— Ohio 620.000 51,036 61,262
SealedAir Corp— New 1,020.000 51,252 50,786
TransatlanticHldgs Inc 422.000 25,233 23,556
Tyco Intl Ltd New 2,590.000 75,924 75,628
United ParcelServiceCl B 185.000 13,910 12,795
VulcanMaterialsCo 220.000 10,355 14,298
Wells Fargo& Co New 890.000 51,948 54,806
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Sharesor
Securities ParValue Market

AlcoaInc 216.000 $ 6,659 $ 5,644
AmericanIntlGroupInc 308.000 19,108 17,895
BakerHughes Inc 299.000 10,221 15,297
BankofAmericaCorp 242.000 8,536 11,038
BankofNew York Inc 440.000 13,663 12,663
BaxterIntl Inc 313.000 9,906 11,612
CignaCorp 75.000 5,153 8,027
CVS Corp 344.000 7,518 10,000
CardinalHealthInc 156.000 9,694 8,982
CitigroupInc 417.000 19,826 19,278
ClearChannel Communications 268.000 10,449 8,289
Clorox CompanyDe 74.000 4,392 4,123
ComcastCorp Cl A SPL 428.000 13,065 12,819
Deere& Co 374.000 22,652 24,493
WaltDisneyCo 717.000 16,671 18,054
E I Du PontDeNemours& Co. 328.000 14,313 14,107
EMC Corp—Mass 1,578.000 20,524 21,634
EatonCorp 127.000 6,485 7,607
Emerson ElectricCo 133.000 7,914 8,330
ExxonMobilCo 840.000 35,315 48,275
General ElectricCo 621.000 20,399 21,518
GiletteCo 132.000 4,761 6,683
GlaxosmithklinePLC Sp ADR 265.000 13,024 12,855
Hartford Fini SvcsGroupInc 85.000 6,493 6,356
H J HeinzCo 240.000 8,972 8,501
HewlettPackardCo 392.000 8,622 9,216
Honeywell IntlInc 172.000 6,502 6,300
Illinois ToolWorksInc 88.000 6,947 7,012
InternationalPaperCo 573.000 22,452 17,310
JP Morgan Chase& Co 735.000 25,897 25,960
Kimberly ClarkCorp 136.000 8,604 8,512
KraftFoodsIncClassA 535.000 16,766 17,018
KrogerCo 730.000 12,294 13,892
MedimmuneInc 161.000 4,378 4,302
MellonFini Corp 674.000 20,675 19,337
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Sharesor
Securities ParValue Market

Merck&Co Inc. 343.000 $ 14,289 $ 10,564
Merrill Lynch& Co, Inc 221.000 12,539 12,157
MicrosoftCorp 527.000 14,247 13,091
MonsantoCo New 75.000 1,823 4,715
MotorolaInc De 1,260.000 16,494 23,008
NewellRubbermáid Inc 303.000 6,780 7,224
NewmontMining Corp 293.000 12,097 11,436
Nike Inc C1B 103.000 7,147 8,920
NovartisAgADR 358.000 16,146 16,984
Parker HannifinCorp 130.000 7,774 8,061
PepsicoInc 280.000 13,554 15,100
PfizerInc. 501.000 13,891 13,818
Potash Corp Sask Inc 124.000 5,902 11,852
Praxair Inc 286.000 10,115 13,328
Progress EnergyInc. 208.000 9,198 9,410
Rohni & HansCo 182.000 6,640 8,434
SBCCommunicationsInc 369.000 8,603 8,764
ScheringPloughCorp 826.000 14,162 15,744
SchiumbergerLtd 153.000 8,307 11,619
Tribune Co 443.000 19,888 15,585
Tyco Intl LtdNew 384.000 9,279 11,213
Union PacificCorp 136.000 8,403 8,812
UnitedParcel Service ClB 116.000 8,814 8,022
VerizonCommunications 565.000 19,331 19,521
ViacomInc ClassA 413.000 15,772 13,307
WachoviaCorp 169.000 7,897 8,382
Waste MgmtInc Del 302.000 8,338 8,559
Wells Fargo& Co New 222.000 12,328 13,671
Wyeth 478.000 20,290 21,271
Xerox Corp 1,018.000 11,920 14,038
AutozoneIncorporated 1,900.000 46,676 175,674
Fortune BradsInc 3,300.000 99,971 293,040
The GapInc 5,600.000 112,543 110,600
Home DepotInc 6,600.000 161,462 256,740
Lowe’s CompaniesInc 1,800.000 43,470 104,796
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O’Reilly Automotive 2,000.000 $ 35,613 $ 59,660
OutbackSteakhouse 6,600.000 162,937 298,584
The SteakN Shake Company 2,800.000 39,115 52,136
ViacomInc ClassB 3,800.000 147,444 121,676
NBTY Inc 1,100.000 21,263 28,534
SaraLeeCorporation 5,629.000 123,616 111,510
SyscoCorporation 4,800.000 166,992 173,712
WalMart StoresInc. . 6,600.000 341,039 318,120
Cal Dive IntlInc 1,100.000 20,621 57,607
Chevron Corp 4,000.000 224,326 223,680
Concophillips 9,648.000. 274,070 554,664
ForestOil Corp 600.000 14,967 25,200
MarathonOilCorp 11,300.000 257,086 603,081
SuperiorEnergyServicesInc 2,300.000 23,081 40,940
AmericanInternationalGroupInc 3,000.000 213,403 174,300
BancfirstCorp 600.000 24,018 52,194
BankofAmericaCorp 7,384.000 192,741 336,784
City BankofLynwood 800.000 27,620 24,816
Hartford Fini SvcsGroupInc 2,400.000 131,004 179,472
JPMorgan Chase& Co 12,880.000 318,063 454,922
Lakeland FinancialCorp 1,200.000 27,653 48,816

Merrill Lynch & Co, Inc 1,900.000 88,443 104,519
Mid-StateBancshares 1,400.000 35,055 38,878
PiperiaffrayCos 43.000 1,167 1,308
SouthwestBancorpInc 3,200.000 32,576 65,536
SuntrustBanksInc 1,200.000 76,113 86,688
USBancorp 4,300.000 80,609 125,560

UnionbancalCorp 2,900.000 77,876 194,068
WashingtonMutual Inc. 3,900.000 160,607 158,691
Whitney HoldingCorp 1,500.000 33,021 48,945
Abbott Laboratories 2,700.000 .107,439 132,327
AmgenInc 2,100.000 123,901 126,966
CandelaCorp 2,300.000 27,154 24,035
Cephalon 2,300.000 93,317 91,540
CharlesRiv LaboratoriesInt Inc. 1,000.000 45,441 48,250
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DavitaInc 650.000 $ 10,933 $ 29,562
ExpressScripts 3,200.000 84,034 159,936
GuidantCorporation 2,500.000 177,296 168,250
Ivax Corporation 11,750.000 182,492 252,625
Laboratory Corp of American Holdings 4,300.000 116,393 214,570
Merit Medical System Inc. 2,000.000 19,693 30,820
ParPharmaceuticalCosInc 3,000.000 135,502 95,430
Parexel International 1,900.000 32,237 37,658
PfizerInc. 5,320.000 148,828 146,727
RespironicsInc 1,200.000 27,552 43,332
Steris Corp . 1,700.000 38,092 43,809
Utd Surgical Partners Intl 1,000.000 32,181 52,080
UniversalHealthServicesInc Cl B 2,000.000 78,037 124,360
VarianMedSys Inc 3,200.000 114,713 119,456
The Boeing Company Capital 4,450.000 208,651 293,700
DoverCorporation 4,400.000 171,845 160,072
EmcorGroupInc. 800.000 31,600 39,120
Emerson ElectricCo 1,800.000 118,319 112,734
FedexCorporation 1,000.000 41,083 81,010
ForwardAir Corp 1,050.000 18,189 29,684
General ElectricCo 6,700.000 162,256 232,155
Honeywell Intl Inc 5,300.000 154,510 194,139
HughesSupplyInc 1,800.000 35,785 50,580
Toro Company 900.000 13,205 34,749
AppliedMaterials 13,500.000 219,360 218,430
CiscoSysInc 8,100.000 144,072 154,548
DaktronicsInc 1,700.000 42,912 34,017
DellInc 3,100.000 110,654 122,326
HewlettPackardCo 9,993.000 163,121 234,935
Intel Corp 12,500.000 261,541 325,250
International Rectifier Corporation. 9,200.000 240,808 439,024
InternetSec SysInc 1,900.000 35,878 38,551
MicrosoftCorp 11,700.000 327,565 290,628
SemtechCorp 2,100.000 39,770 34,965
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Sungard DataSystems 7,400.000 $ 176,888 $ 260,258
SynapticsInc 1,500.000 27,461 32,040
Tim TechnologiesInc 5,600.000 56,500 42,616
Texas Instruments 9,500.000 229,259 266,665
3 Com Corp 5,500.000 22,769 19,965
AlcoaInc 2,500.000 70,041 65,325
NucorCorporation 2,900.000 143,665 132,298
OregonSteelMills 2,100.000 37,208 36,141
AT&TCorp 8,320.000 202,556 158,413
DominionResourcesInc. 2,900.000 167,433 212,831
Public Service Enterprise GroupInc. 6,100.000. 305,849 371,002
Alcoa6%matures1/15/12 203,000.000 217,685 219,845
American InternationalGroup4.25%
matures 5/15/13 65,000.000 60,718 63,042
Anheuser-BuschCos5%matures1/15/15 60,000.000 59,873 62,255
BayerischeLandesbank7.5% matures10/6/09 410,000.000 405,900 384,375
Coca ColaEnterprises8.5% matures2/1/22 106,000.000 145,517 144,962
Consolidated Edison 8.125% matures 5/1/10 175,000.000 214,063 204,904
Countrywide Home Loan4%matures3/22/11 62,000.000 57,987 59,794
FedexCorp Ser 97-A 7.50% matures1/15/18 148,912.890 173,274 173,733
GTE/Verizon Communications Ser 6.46%
matures 4/15/08 441,000.000 467,803 463,416
General Electric Company5%matures2/1/13 180,000.000 187,042 185,852
GE Cap6.75%matures3/15/32 58,000.000 69,367 71,571
Goldman SachsGroup6.6% matures1/15/12 25 1,000.000 272,092 278,964
HSBC Finance Corporation5%matures
6/30/15 75,000.000 74,911 75,586
Intl Bk Recon& Develop Ser Emin3.25%
matures7/3/13 140,000.000 132,825 134,214
MorganStanleyCorp6.75%matures4/15/11 132,000.000 144,675 146,156
Natl Rural Util 6%matures 5/15/06 127,000.000 137,376 129,282
PhillipsPetroleum8.75%matures5/25/10 118,000.000 139,055 140,566
Procter& GambleCo 4.95%matures 8/15/14 164,000.000 164,509 170,936
VerizonPennsylvania 5.65%matures 11/15/11 85,000.000 87,741 88,705
VirginiaElectric & Power 8.25% matures
3/1/25 132,000.000 137,042 136,922
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WalMart Stores4.125%matures7/1/10 110,000.000 $ 109,913 $ 109,671
Seagate Technology 1,325.000 24,424 23,254
AT & T Corp 1,300.000 23,971 24,752
AlbertsonsInc Delaware 1,215.000 27,831 25,126
Alltel CorpDelaware 465.000 25,575 28,960
Altria GroupInc. 385.000 21,162 24,894
BankofAmericaCorp 545.000 23,785 24,857
ChevronCorp 425.000 21,044 23,766
ConagraFoodsInc 905.000 24,345 20,960
ConocOphillips 450.000 18,280 25,871
DTEEnergyCompany 535.000. 23,153 25,022
DeluxeCorp 620.000 24,967 25,172
Dow ChemicalCo 495.000 22,887 22,042
Duke Realty Corp 800.000 26,006 25,328
Freéport McMoranCopper & GoldCl B 600.000 22,764 22,464
GlaxosmithidinePLC SpADR 515.000 22,706 24,983
Hewlett PackardCo 1,055.000 21,322 24,803
J PMorganChase &Co 690.000 25,614 24,371
JeffersonPilot Corp 525.000 26,070 26,471
Keycorp New 1,470.000 46,798 48,731
KeyspanCorp 640.000 24,259 26,048
KimberlyClark Corp 390.000 24,609 24,410
Limited BrandsInc. 990.000 21,734 21,206
Lincoln NationalCorp 545.000 24,254 25,571
Lyondell Chemical Company 1,025.000 25,115 27,081
MBNA Corp 1,000.000 24,965 26,160
MarathonOil Corp 920.000 39,747 49,100
MayDepartmentStoresCo. 655.000 19,168 26,305
Merck& Co Inc. 1,420.000 44,049 43,736
MorganStanley 435.000 23,097 22,824
NorthropGrummanCorp . 450.000 24,945 24,862
OccidentalPetroleumCorp . 350.000 18,321 26,926
PetrochinaCo Ltd ADR 400.000 25,557 29,380
Petrobras 475.000 21,689 24,762
PfizerInc. 935.000 25,652 25,787
Progress Energy Inc. 585.000 25,824 26,465
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Regions FinancialCorp 1,505.000 $ 49,965 $ 50,989
Reynolds AmericanInc. 330.000 22,554 26,004
St. Paul Travelers Cos Inc. 700.000 26,258 . 27,671
Sempra Energy 620.000 21,538 . 25,612
StanleyWorks 540.000 24,017 24,592
V. F. Corp 435.000 23,612 24,891
VerizonCommunications 730.000 27,431 25,221
WashingtonMutualInc. 1,175.000 47,434 47,811
Whirlpool Corp 770.000 50,299 53,985
Alcoa Inc 149.000 4,808 3,893
AmericanIntGroupInc 234.000 15,175 13,595

BakerHughesInc 215.000 8,532 10,999
BankofAmericaCorp 175.000 7,205 7,982
BankNewYork Inc 311.000 9,427 8,951
BaxterIntl Inc 230.000 7,697 8,533
Cigna Corp 55.000 4,076 5,887
CVS Corp 238.000 5,274 6,919
Cardinal HealthInc 112.000 6,130 6,449
Citigroup Inc 301.000 14,061 l3,9l~5
ClearChannelCommunications 186.000 6,961 5,753
Clorox Company De 51.000 3,031 2,842
Comcast Corp Cl A SPL 304.000 8,955 9,105
Deere & Co 267.000 17,660 17,486
Walt Disney Co 504.000 12,910 12,691
E I Du Pont De Nemours& Co 239.000 . 10,908 10,279
EMCCorp—Mass 1,135.000 13,553 15,561
Eaton Corp 92.000 5,644 5,511

Emerson Electric Co 95.000 5,917 5,950
Exxon Mobil Corp 581.000 27,504 33,390
GeneralElectric Co 438.000 14,656 15,177
Gillette Co 93.000 3,895 4,709
GlaxosmithidinePLC Sp ADR 188.000 9,240 9,120
Hartford Finl Svcs Group Inc 60.000 4,583 4,487
H J Heinz Co . 171.000 6,389 6,057
HewlettPackardCo 278.000 6,115 6,536
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Honeywell Intl Inc 122.000 $ 4,612 $ 4,469
Illinois Tool WorksInc 62.000 5,686 4,940
InternationalPaperCo 403.000 16,232 12,175
J P Morgan Chase& Co 523.000 19,005 18,472
Kimberly ClarkCorp 97.000 6,167 6,071
Kraft FoodsInc ClassA 386.000 12,400 12,279
KrogerCo 518.000 8,713 9,858
MedimmuneInc 114.000 3,100 3,046
MellonFini Corp 472.000 13,940 13,542
Merck & Co Inc. 245 .000 9,899 7,546
Merrill Lynch & Co Inc 15 8.000 8,700 8,692

Microsoft Corp 3 86.000 10,267 9,588
Monsanto Co New 52.000 1,976 3,269
Motorola Inc De 916.000 13,318 16,726
Newell Rubbermaid Inc 223.000 5,000 5,316
Newmont Mining Corp 2 10.000 8,982 8,196
Nike Inc Cl B 73.000 5,652 6,322
NovartisAgADR 254.000 11,883 12,050
Parker Hannifin Corp 93 .000 5,988 5,767
Pepsico Inc 199.000 10,232 10,732
Pfizer Inc. 364.000 10,001 10,039
Potash Corp Sask Inc 89.000 5,660 8,506
Praxair Inc 197.000 7,734 9,180
Progress Energy Inc. 149.000 6,420 6,741
Rohm&HaasCo 129.000 5,336 5,978
SBCCommunications Inc 268.000 6,387 6,365
Schering Plough Corp 613.000 11,200 11,684
SchlumbergerLtd 109.000 6,725 8,277
TribuneCo 319.000 13,901 11,222
Tyco Intl LtdNew 271.000 8,384 7,913
Union PacificCorp 95.000 5,952 6,156
UnitedParcel ServiceCl B 85.000 6,457 5,878
VerizonCommunications 409.000 14,414 14,131
ViacomInc ClassA 286.000 10,428 9,215
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WachoviaCorp
2

nd New 122.000 $ 5,781 $ 6,051
Waste MgmtInc Del 216.000 6,246 6,121
Wells Fargo& Co New 159.000 9,154 9,791
Wyeth 359.000 14,016 15,975
Xerox Corp 743.000 10,355 . 10,246
Afiac Inc 309.000 11,532 13,374
Abbott Laboratories 324.00.0 15,134 15,879
AmgenInc 280.000 16,457 16,929
Apache Corp . 259.000 15,092 16,731
Best BuyInc. 274.000 14,629 18,783
CaremarkRxInc 282.000 11,125 12,555
Cisco SysInc 657.000 11,799 12,536
Citigroup Inc . 203.000 9,052 9,385
Dell Inc . 393.000 15,024 15,508;
EbayInc 330.000 11,919 10,893
Electronic Arts 145.000 7,704 8,208
Emerson Electric Co 287.000 18,600 17,975
Exxon Mobil Corp 312.000 18,018 17,931
Fiserv Inc 299.000 11,781 12,824
GenentechInc 231.000 13,202 18,545
General ElectricCo 626.000 22,411 21,691
Home DepotInc 367.000 14,034 14,276
Illinois Tool WorksInc 216.000 19,069 17,211
Intel Corp 447.000 10,361 11,631
InternationalBusiness MachinesCorp 106.000 9,603 7,865
Johnson& Johnson 142.000 9,656 9,230
Maxim Integrated ProdsInc 268.000 10,999 10,243

McGraw Hill CosInc 312.000 13,505 13,806
MedtronicInc 395.000 20,347 20,457
Microsoft Corp 647.000 15,619 16,071
Pepsico Inc 260.000 13,725 14,022
PraxairInc 266.000 12,473 12,396
Procter& GambleCo 231.000 12,192 12,185
StaplesInc. 674.000 13,996 14,349
StarbucksCorp 227.000 11,121 11,727

59



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Shares or
Securities ParValue Cost Market

Sysco Corporation 500.000 $ 18,130 $ 18,095
Target Corp 337.000 17,150 18,336
TevaPharmaceuticalIndsLtd ADR 620.000 18,823 19,307
UnitedParcel ServiceCl B 169.000 12,274 11,688
WalMart Stores,Inc. 348.000 17,748 16,774
WalgreenCoNew 291.000 13,054 13,383
WellsFargo & Co New 256.000 15,145 15,764
ZebraTechnologiesInc Cl A 180.000 8,310 7,882
ZimmerHoldingsInc 211.000 17,140 16,071
Altria GroupInc 1,030.000 58,372 66,600
AmericanExpressCo 1,265.000 . 66,864 67,336
AmericanIntlGroupInc 1,055.000 65,896 61,296
AonCorp 315.000 7,561 7,888
AutozoneInc 105.000 8,945 9,708
BerkshireHathawayInc ClassB 20.000 56,024 55,670
H&RBlock Inc 425.000 21,051 24,799
CardinalHealthInc 260.000 13,363 14,971
Citigroup Inc 755.000 34,829 34,904
ComcastCorp Cl A SPL 1,450.000 43,502 43,428
Conocophillips 665.000 . 28,965 38,231
Costco WholesaleCorpNew 940.000 41,704 42,046
DevonEnergyCorp New 580.000 22,670 29,394
DiageoPLC Spon ADR— New 295.000 16,216 17,494
Dun & BradstreetCorpNew 40.000 1,690 2,466
Eog ResourcesInc. 495.000 17,577 28,116
Fifth Third Bancorp 300.000 14,712 12,351
GoldenWestFinl Corp 680.000 41,053 43,778
HCA Inc 375.000 15,060 21,251
HSBC Bldg PLC SP ADR 536.000 43,323 42,692
HarleyDavidsonInc. . 210.000 10,490 10,416
Hershey Company 210.000 10,858 13,041
IronMountainInc 515.000 15,405 15,975
J P Morgan Chase& Co . 1,475.000 54,291 52,097
Lexmark IntlGroupInc Cl A 175.000 15,517 11,345
Eli Lilly&Co 190.000 11,667 10,585
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Lloyds TSB Grp PLCSpADR 285.000 $ 9,474 $ 9,704
LoewsCorp 330.000 20,631 25,575
Marsh & McLennan Cos Inc 365.000 11,808 . 10,111
MicrosoftCorp 445.000 12,148 11,054
Moody’s Corporation 380.000 13,595 . 17,085
MorganStanley 150.000 7,851 7,871
Occidential PetroleumCorp 405.000 22,954 31,157
ProgressiveCorp— Ohio 415.000 36,209 41,006
SealedAir Corp New 640.000 32,608 31,865
TransatlanticBldgs Inc 265.000 16,255 14,792
Tyco Intl LtdNew 2,030.000. 65,134 59,276
UnitedParcel Service ClB 120.000 9,463 8,299
VulcanMaterialsCo 140.000 6,929 9,098
Wells Fargo& Co New 595.000 35,839 36.640

$ 20.915.811 $ 24.356.420

U.S.TreasuryObligations
U.S. TreasuryNotesSerR-20062.75%
matures7/31/06 36,000.000 $ 35,730 $ 35,695
U.S. TreasuryNotesSerB-20085.50%
matures2/15/08 76,000.000 79,076 79,518

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser B-2009 5.50%
matures5/15/09 161,000.000 169,000 171,571

U.S. Treasury Note Ser B-2012 4.875%
matures 2/15/12 113,000.000 116,054 120,009

U.S. TreasuryNotesA-2006 5.625%
matures2/15/06 315,000.000 338,199 319,344

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser G-2006 2.0%
matures5/15/06 220,000.000 220,293 217,182

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser D-2006 6.50%
matures10/15/06 425,000.000 472,450 440,423

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser G-2007 6.25%
matures2/15/07 105,000.000 110,723 109,381
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U.S. Treasury Notes Ser E-2007 4.3 75%
matures5/15/07 435,000.000 $ 466,788 $ 440,794
U.S. TreasuryNotesSerD-2007 6.125%
matures8/15/07 205,000.000 231,720 215,297
U.S. TreasuryNotesSer E-2008 3.00%
matures2/15/08 560,000.000 574,702 . 550,922

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser C-2008 5.625%
matures 5/15/08 105,000.000 106,053 110,537

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser D-2008 4.75%
matures11/15/08 425,000.000 457,798 439,080
U.S. TreasuryNotesSer D-2009 3.25%
matures1/15/09 . 450,000.000 457,464 443,583
U.S. TreasuryNotesSer K-20093.625%
matures 7/15/09 445,000.000 443,969 443,523

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser G-2010 4.00%
matures 3/15/10 220,000.000 221,805 222,398

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser C-20l 1 5.00%
matures 8/15/11 105,000.000 110,159 111,944
U.S. Treasury Notes Ser E-2013 3.875%
matures 2/15/13 220,000.000 216,005 220,266
U.S. TreasuryNotesSer E-2014 4.25%
matures 8/15/14 110,000.000 111,478 112,630

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser V-2006 2.875%
matures11/30/06 157,000.000 155,322 155,399
Federal Home LoanMtg Corp 4.875%
matures 3/15/07 70,000.000 71,240 71,269
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 7.25%matures1/15/10 24,000.000 27,506 27,217
Federal Natl Mtg Assn6.125% matures3/15/12 156,000.000 169,995 174,477
U.S. Treasury Bonds 6.25%matures2/15/29 44,000.000 45,307 50,323
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 6.625%matures11/15/30 13,000.000 15,508 16,872
FederalHomeLoanMtg Corp 0%matures
1/28/33 3,145,000.000 469,838 546,601

Fed Home Loan Bk Ser5.45%matures 6/5/13 505,000.000 491,744 493,032
FedHomeLoan Bk 0%matures11/15/32 2,355,000.000 321,410 395,405
Fed Home Loan Bk 3.05%matures4/9/18 150,000.000 148,536 148,922
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Fed Home Loan BkStep Cpn3.00%
matures3/18/08 . 155,000.000 $ 155,000 $ 153,838
Fed Home Loan Bank 8.5%matures9/29/14 1,680,000.000 1,667,400 . 1,680,000
Fed Home Loan Bank1% matures 2/17/17 110,000.000 . 109,747 109,862
Fed Home LoanBank4.338%matures3/2/15 900,000.000 899,550 899,550
FedHome Loan Bank 7% matures 3/2/20 655,000.000 654,312 654,345
Fed Home Loan Bank 4.25% matures 4/20/10 140,000.000 139,694 140,088
Fed HomeLoan Bank 4%matures 4/25/07 75,000.000 75,000 75,071
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 4.75% matures 2/21/13 70,000.000 69,827 69,934
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 4%matures11/2/06 362,000.000 362,000 362,112
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 4.625% matures 4/22/10 504,000.000. 503,924 504,318
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 5.5%matures 2/27/20 350,000.000 350,000 349,892
Fed Natl Mtg Assn Step Cpn 3%matures 10/28/09 500,000.000 499,375 498,595
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 4.375% matures 3/22/10 724,000.000 721,130 724,456
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 3%matures 12/16/09 497,000.000 494,267 495,290
U.S. Treasury Bond 6.25% matures 8/15/23 119,000.000 144,539 148,299
U.S. Treasury Note 5%matures2/15/11 897,000.000 957,685 953,027
U.S. Treasury Note 1.625% matures9/30/05 254,000.000 252,452 253,037
U.S. Treasury Note4.25%matures11/15/13 455,000.000 458,487 466,107
U.S. Treasury Inflation Index Bond
l.625%matures1/15/15 513,489.360 505,708 511,625

Fed HomeLoan Mtg Corp 6%matures 9/1/06 1,883.590 1,805 1,900
Fed HomeLoan Mtg Corp 6.5%matures 9/1/28 13,778.560 13,654 14,317
Fed HomeLoan Mtg Corp 8.5% matures 1/1/30 8,882.140 9,095 9,678
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 7%matures 6/1/12 10,721.040 10,934 11,236
Federal Natl Mtg Assn Pool 7%matures 7/1/29 8,493.480 8,369 8,964
FNCI Pool 6.5% matures 2/1/16 18,950.420 . 19,588 19,733
Fed Natl Mtg Assn FNMAPool 6.5%
matures2/l/32 24,109.100 23,913 25,008

Federal Natl Mtg Assn 7%matures 10/1/28 7,912.530 8,041 8,359
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 7%matures 7/1/29 2,623.490 2,578 2,769
Federal NatlMtg Assn 7.5%matures12/1/29 8,069.200 8,073 8,629
Federal Natl Mtg Assn 6.5%matures 9/1/3 1 19,548.360 19,592 20,277
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Federal Natl Mort Assoc Pool 6.5%
matures9/1/32 20,174.810 $ 21,083 $ 20,914

Federal Natl Mort Assoc Pool 4.907%
matures 1/1/33 42,104.900 43,223 42,890
GNMAPool NBRSingle Family 6.5%
matures 2/15/29 54,839.370 54,125 57,366
GNMA Pool NBRSingleFamily 7.5%
matures3/15/29 2,724.870 2,678 2,921
GNMA 7.5% matures 7/15/29 2,205.930 2,119 2,365
GNMA PoolNBRPlatinum 7% matures 6/15/09 61,384.980 62,563 63,326
GNMA7% matures 9/15/24 178,229.110 186,378 189,627
U.S. Treasury Notes Ser V-2006 2.875%
matures 11/30/06 112,000.000 110,802 110,858

Federal HomeLoan Mtg Corp 4.875%
matures 3/15/07 50,000.000 50,886 50,906

Fed Natl Mtg Assn 7.25% matures 1/15/10 18,000.000 20,477 20,413
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 6.125% matures 3/15/12 112,000.000 122,659 125,265
U.S. Treasury Bonds 5.25%matures2/15/29 32,000.000 33,184 36,599
Fed Natl Mtg Assn 6.625% matures 11/15/30 9,000.000 10,627 11,680
U.S. TreasuryNotesSerR-2006 2.75%
matures7/31/06 20,000.000 19,850 19,831

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser B-2008 5.5%
matures 2/15/08 57,000.000 59,369 59,639

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser B-2009 5.5%
matures 5/15/09 121,000.000 127,201 128,945

U.S. TreasuryNotes Ser B-2012 4.875%
matures 2/15/12 85,000.000 87,524 90,273

U.S. Treasury Notes A-2006 5.625%
matures 2/16/06 175,000.000 182,343 177,413

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser G-2006 2.00%
matures5/15/06 125,000.000 124,841 123,399

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser D20066.5%
matures10/15/06 . . . 235,000.000 259,384 243,528
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Sharesor

Securities ParValue Cost Market

U.S. TreasuryNotesSerG 20076.25%
matures 2/15/07 55,000.000 $ 61,060 $ 57,295

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser E-2007 4.3 75%
matures 5/15/07 , 240,000.000 254,545 243,197

U.S. Treasury Notes SerD 2007 6.125%
matures8/15/07 115,000.000 128,191 120,776

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser E-2008 3.0%

matures2/15/08 305,000.000 308,873 300,056
U.S. Treasury Notes Ser C 2008 5.625%
matures5/15/08 55,000.000 57,080 57,900
U.S. Treasury Notes Ser D 2008 4.75%
matures 1,1/15/08 230,000.000 244,883 237,620
U.S. Treasury Notes Ser D-2009 3.25%
matures 1/15/09 250,000.000 ‘ 251,917 246,435

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser K-2009 3.625%
matures 7/15/09 250,000.000 249,311 249,170

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser G-2010 4.00%..
matures3/15/10 125,000.000 126,031 126,363

U.S. TreasuryNotesSerC-20l1 5.00%
matures 8/15/11 55,000.000 57,973 58,637

U.S. Treasury Notes SerE-2013 3.875%
matures 2/15/13 125,000.000 121,548 125,151

U.S. Treasury Notes Ser E-2014 4.25%
matures8/15/14 60,000.000 60,807 61,435

$ 19.505.146 $ 19.526.123

3. Property Taxes

The taxes onrealproperty and theinterest and other charges upon such taxes attach as an
enforceable lienon the first dayofJuly. Thereis no lien denominated as such onpersonal
property;however,statutesprovidethat thesheriffofa countymaydistrain for delinquenttaxes
any goods andchattelsbelonging to apersonassessed. All current taxes assessed onrealand
personal propertymay bepaidin two installments; the first installmentis payable on September
first ofthe year for which the assessmentis made, and become delinquent onOctoberfirst, and the
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second installment is payable on the first day of thefollowing March andbecomes delinquenton
April first, Taxes paid on or before the date when they are payable, including both first and second.
installments, are subject to a discount of two andone-halfpercent. If taxes arenotpaidonor
before the date on which they becomedelinquent, includingbothfirst and second installments,
interest at the rate of nine percent annum is added from the date they become delinquent until paid.

All municipalities within the state are authorized to levytaxes not in excessofthefollowing
maximum levies per $100 of assessed valuation: On Class I property,twelve andfive-tenths cents
(12.50); on Class II property, twenty-five cents(25.00);and onClassIV property,fifty cents
(50.00). In addition, municipalities may provide for an election to lay an excess levy, the rates not
to exceed fifty percent of such authorized maximum levies, provided that atleastsixty percentof
the voters cast ballots in favor of the excess levy.

The levy rates levied by the CityofMorgantown,West Virginia, per$100ofassessed valuationfor
each class of propertyfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 were as follows:

Class of . AssessedValuations Current
Property For TaxPurposesExpense

Class I $ 16,680 11.380
Class II 224,228,290 22.760
Class IV 450,268,456 45.520

4. CapitalAssetsandCapitalAssetsNet ofDepreciation

Capital asset activityforthe year ended June30, 2005was asfollows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

GovernmentalActivities
Nondepreciable capital assets

Land $ 65,750 $ 4,834,543 $ -0- $ 4,900,293
Construction inprocess 277.221 1,200.441 . 277,221 1.200.441

Total nondepreciable capital assets 342.971 6.034.984 277.221 . 6,100.734

Depreciable capital assets
Landimprovements 499,022 282,089 -0- 781,111
Buildings 10,420,778 211,458 -0- 10,632,236
Infrastructure 2,545,098 99,126 . -0- 2,644,224
Machinery andequipment . 1,597,611 268,599 -0- 1,866,210
Furniture andfixtures . 175,909 9,286 -0- 185,195
Vehicles 4,455,998 336,681 42,200 4,750,479
Books andvideos 4,546,660 149.434 67,619 4.628.475

Totals athistoricalcost 24,24LO7fi 1,356.673 109.819 25,487.930
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Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements $ 372,185 $ 24,113 $ -0- $ 396,298
Buildings 2,330,458 203,915 -0- 2,534,373
Infrastructure 180,279 54,262 -0- 234,541
Machinery and equipment 1,099,720 126,583 -0- 1,226,303
Furniture and fixtures . 74,645 9,260 -0- 83,905
Vehicles . 3,090,359 294,461 41,575 3,343,245
Books and videos 909,332 913.244 15.523 1.807.053

Total accumulated depreciation 8.056,978 1,625,838 57.098 9.625.718
Total depreciation capital assets, net . l6.l84.09~ ( 269.165) 52.721 15.862,212

Governmentalactivitiescapital assets, net $ 16.527.069 $ 5.765~8.i9 $ 329.942 $ 21.962.946.

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Retirements Balance

EnterpriseActivities
Nondepreciable capitalassets

Land $ 2,234,558 $ 15,323 $ -0- $ 2,249,881
Construction inprocess ~~2.470 2.511.199 3.232.542 2,301.127

Total nondepreciable capital assets 5.257,028 2.526.522 3.232.542 4.551,008

Depreciable capitalassets
Landimprovements 24,400 -0- -0- 24,400
Buildings 11,854,024 1,021,164 -0- 12,875,188
Structures andimprovements 18,672,593 2,308,755 -0- 20,981,348
Leaseholdimprovements 90,965 -0- -0- 90,965
Machinery and equipment 1.698.662 108,863 ~ 1.807.525

Total at historical cost 32,340.644 3.438.782 ~ 35.779,426
Less: Accumulateddepreciation
Landimprovements 14,760 1,093 -0- 15,853
Buildings 1,720,851 210,244 -0- 1,931,095
Structuresand improvements 9,656,848 655,347 -0- 10,312,195
Leaseholdimprovements 75,264 5,546 -0- 80,810
Machinery andequipment . 1.493.244 211.354 ~E 1,704,598

Total accumulateddepreciation 12.960.967 1.083.584 ~ 14.044.551
Total depreciablecapital assets, net 19.379.677 2.355,198 -0- 21.734.875

Governmentalactivitiescapital assets, net $ ~5 $ 4.88 1.720 $ 3.232.542 $ 26.285.883
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Depreciation expense waschargedto governmentalactivitiesas.follows:

General government . $ 135,296
Public safety . . . 264,479
Highways and streets . 105,559
Culture andrecreation 1,120,504

Total depreciation expense . $ 1,625.838

5. Long-TermDebt

Long-term liabilityactivity for the year endedJune30, 2005was asfollows:

Amounts Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within Due After
Balance Additions Reductions Balance OneYear OneYear

GovernmentalActivities

Compensatedabsences $ 1,462.924 $ 183.465 $ ~ $ 1.646,389 $353,688 $ 1.292,701.

Governmentalactivities

long-term liabilities $ 1.462.924 $ 1~4~ $ 4 $ 1.646.389 $ 353.688 $ 1.292.701

The followingis a summaryofbondspayableat June30, 2005:

Amounts Amounts
Beginning Ending DueWithin DueAfter
Balance Additions Reductions Balance OneYear OneYear

Business-TypeActivities

Bondspayable:
2003 MunicipalBuilding Lease
RevenueRefundingBonds $ 7,495,000 $ -0- $ 370,000 $ 7,125,000 $ 375,000 $ 6,750,000

2002 ParkingRevenueBonds 5.705,602 227.436 191,053 5.741.985 120.000. 5.621,985
Total bondspayable 13.200.602 227,436 561.053 12.866.985 495.000 12.371.985

Other long-term debt
Notespayable . . 80,983 . -0- 11,849 69,134 12,376 56,758
Obligationundercapitallease 11,227 -0- 7,925 3,302 3,302
Accruedcompensatedabsences 148.873 14.115 -0- 162.988 162.988 -0-

Total otherlong-termdebt 241.083 14.115 19.774 235.424 178.666 56.758

Total long-termdebt $ 13.441.685 $ ~ $ ~ $ 13.102.409 $ ~ $ l2A28.743
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2003Municipal Building Lease Revenue Refunding Bond .

This issuewasauthorizedto refinance the9,490,000,1996 City ofMorgantownMunicipal
Building LeaseRevenue RefundingBonds. Thebondswereissuedbearinginterestof 2.00%-
4.00% payable semiannually on the first dayofJanuary and the first dayofJuly of each year.

The following is a schedule of future debt retirementbasedon current financing arrangements:

Fiscal YearEnded June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 $ 375,000 $ 243,490 $ 618,490

2007 . 390,000 235,990 625,990
2008 395,000 228,190 623,190
2009 405,000 218,316 623,316
2010 415,000 206,164 621,164

2011-2015 2,280,000 822,080 3,102,080
2016-2019 2.865,000 333.200 3,198.200

Total $ 2J25.000 $ 2.287.430 $ 9.412.430

The 2003 bonds are secured by the lease rentals derived from the lease of the public safety and
parkingbuildingofthe Citypursuantto the lease, and from funds on deposit in the reserve
account.

As requiredby the2003bondordinance,a sinkingfundhasbeenestablished withWesBancoTrust
InvestmentServices.Moneys in thesinking fundare to be used only for the purposesofpaying
principalofand interest on the bonds. Payments arerequiredto bemadeinto the sinkingfundto
pay interest which will mature and become due on thenextsucceeding interest payment date.The
balance in the sinking fund account with the Wesbanco Trust Investment Services at June 30,
2005was$800,555.

2002Parking RevenueBonds

This issuewas authorized tofinancethe acquisition, construction andequippingof anewmotor
vehicleparkingfacility. The bonds were issuedbearinginterestofa variablerateperannumequal
to 75%ofthe Federal Home Loan BankRatefor 5-yearmaturitywith a 20-year amortization, plus
2%. Thebondsare payable in42 semiannualinstallments on January1 and July 1.
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The following is a schedule of future debt retirement based on current financing arrangements:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2006 . $ 120,000 $ 257,329 $ 377,329
2007 125,000 254,657 379,657
2008 130,000 251,420 381,420
2009 130,000 249,683 379,683
2010 135,000 243,571 378,571

2011-2015 755,000 1,140,839 1,895,839
2016-2020 920,000 973,789 1,893,789
2021-2025 1,155,000 739,874 1,894,874
2026-2030 1,470,000 424,802 1,894,802
2031-2033 801,985 66.330 868,315

Total $ 5.741.9S5 $ 4.602.294 $ 10,344.279

The2002bonds are secured by the revenues of the Parking Authority and a statutory mortgage lien
on the ParkingAuthoritysystem.

NotesPayable
Building Commission

Huntington NationalBank
4.00%: installmentobligation;payable in monthly installmentsof$1,243. Repaymentat June30,
2005 is asfollows:

YearEnding June 30. Principal Interest Total

2006 . $ 12,376 $ 2,542 $ 14,918
2007 12,884 2,034 14,918
2008 13,407 1,511 14,918
2009 13,953 965 14,918
2010 14,522 396 14,918
2011 1,992 7 1,999

$ 69.134 $ 7.455 $ 76.589
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Obligation Under Capital Lease

Parking Authority
The Parking Authorityofthe CityofMorgantownentered into a capitalleaseonNovember9, 2000
to finance the acquisitionofaTennant7400GasScrubber.The lease qualifies as a capital lease
for accounting purposes and, therefore, hasbeenrecordedat thepresentvalueoftheminimum
lease payments asofthe dateofinception.The following is a scheduleofthe futureminimum
lease paymentsrequiredunder thiscapitallease and thepresentvalueofthe netminimumlease
payments at June30, 2005:

Fiscal YearEndingJune30,

2006 $ 3,800
Less: Amountrepresentinginterest 498

3,302
Less: Current maturities 3,302

Noncurrent maturities $ -0-

6. Employees RetirementSystem

West VirginiaPublic EmploymentRetirementSystem
The municipality maintains three separateemployeecontributing pension plans. These plans cover
firemen,police officers, andsubstantiallyall otherfull-time civilian employeeswith the exception
ofthe Morgantown PublicLibraryand BoParcemployeeswho arecoveredby theWest Virginia
PublicEmployeesRetirementSystem. Themunicipality’scontributions to theWestVirginia
PublicEmployeesRetirementSystemfor the year ended June30, 2005 were:

Covered
PercentageofPayroll Wages Wages Amount

Employershare10.50% $ 1,426,100 $ 967,779 $ 101,302
Employeeshare4.50% 1,426,100 967,779 43.416

Total contribution $ 144.718

71



CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

A member whohasattainedage60 andhasearned fiveormoreyearsofcontributingserviceis
eligible for a normalretirementbenefit. The annual normal retirementbenefitis payable in
monthlyinstallments,which is equal to 2%ofthemember’sfinal average salary times thenumber
ofyearsofcredited service. Finalaveragesalaryis the averageofthemember’sannual
compensation during thethreeconsecutiveyearsofcredited service (during the10 yearspreceding
the terminationofemployment) thatproducethe highestsuchaverage.

Employeeswhom havecompletedat least3 yearsofcontributing service andhaveeitherattained
age55 andcompleted10 yearsofcreditedservice,or havecompleted20 yearsofcreditedservice,
may electto havetheirdeferredvestedbenefit commence on the firstof anymonthfollowing their

55
th birthday.

According to the latest actuarialstudydatedDecember2002oftheWestVirginia Public
Employees’RetirementSystempreparedby Buck Consultants,Inc., theunfundedactuarial liability
asofJune30, 2002was$843,690,000.The valuation indicates that thecurrentcontributionlevels
will NOT be sufficient to amortizetheexistingunfundedliability. Otherrelevantinformation also
reported in thatstudyis as follows:

Pensionbenefitobligation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving

benefits and vestedterminatedemployeesnot
yet receivingbenefits,andnonvested
employees’contributions $ 1,365,135,000

Active participants:
Accumulatedmembercontributions and other

benefits 1,323,812,000

Total pension benefitobligation $ 2.688.947.000

Net assetsavailablefor benefits,
at market value $ ~588.777.O0fl

7. EmployeeRetirementSystemand Plans

Plan Descriptions.ContributionInformation
TheMunicipality ofMorgantown,WestVirginiaparticipates in three singleemployer,public
employeeretirementsystems.Assets are heldseparatelyand may beusedonly for the payment
ofbenefitsto themembersofthe respective plans, asfollows:
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ThePolicemen’sPension andReliefFund(PPRF)provides retirementbenefitsfor substantially
all full-time policeemployees.Unlessotherwise indicated, PPRF information in thisNoteis
providedasofthe latest actuarial valuation,July 1, 2003.

TheFiremen’sPension andReliefFund(FPRF)provides retirementbenefitsfor substantiallyall
full-time fire employees. Unless otherwise indicated,FPRFinformation in this Note is
providedas the latest actuarial valuation, July1, 2003.

The Employees PensionandReliefFund(ERF) provides retirementbenefitsfor substantiallyall
full-time permanentemployeesnot covered by other plans. Unless otherwise indicated,ERF
informationin this Noteis provided asofthe latest actuarial valuation, July1, 2004.

Actuarial valuations arerequiredto beperformedonce everythreeyearsperstatestatute.
However, the actuarial valuations can beperformedin shorter intervals at the discretionofthe
PPRF,FPRFandERF’s board.

Membershipsofthe plans are asfollows:

Group PPRF FPRF ERF Totals

Activeemployees:
Fully vested 9 12 236 257
Nonvested 42 32 -0- 74

Vestedterminatedbenefits -0- -0- 6 6
Retirees and beneficiariescurrently
receivingbenefits 189

Total 9~ 9~7 3~3J. 526

These plans aredefinedbenefitplans. The following is a summaryoffunding policies,

contributionmethods and benefitprovisions.
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Governingauthority

Detemiinationofcontribution
requirements

PPRF
City CouncilOrdinance

Actuariallydetermined

FPRF

City CouncilOrdinance

Actuariallydetermined

ERF

City CouncilOrdinance

Actuariallydetermined

Employer

Plan members

Period Required toVest

Post-retirementBenefit

Contributeannuallyanamountwhich, togetherwith contributions
from the membersand the allocable portionof the state premium
tax fund, will besufficient to meet the normal costofthe fund
andamortizeanyunfundedactuarialaccruedliability.
Municipalitiesmayutilize an alternativecontributionmethod
which allows themunicipalityto contribute no less than 107%
ofthe prior yearscontributionprovidedthe actuary certifies
in writing that thefund will be solvent over the next15 years
underthis method. In noevent canthe employercontribution
be less than the normal costasdetermined by the actuary.

7%ofcovered payroll 7%ofcovered payroll

20 yearsofservice but no later than the date theparticipant
reaches 65.

Costofliving adjustmentafter twoyearsofretirement.
Adjustmentcalculatedon thefirst $15,000ofthe total annual
benefit multipliedby the Consumer PriceIndex(not to exceed
4%). Costof Living adjustment calculated thereafter on a
cumulativebasis.

Contributeannuallyanamountsufficient to meet
the normal costofthe fundand amortize the
actuarialdeficit over aperiodof22 years.

6.00%ofcovered payroll

The latterofthe date the participant attains
age 60 and10 yearsofservice credit,orattains
age55 and age plus yearsofServiceCredit
total 85.

AnnualCostofLiving adjustments is thelesser
of3% orthe annual consumerpriceindex
multiplied by 50%; provided that the
municipality’scontribution for the year is less
than 6%ofthe participating payroll.

Provisionsfor:
Diabiity benefits
Death benefits

Yes Yes Yes
Yes Yes Yea

Annual RequiredContributionsandSignificant ActuarialAssumptions
Actuarial assumptions and other information used todeterminethe annualrequiredcontributions

(ARC) are asfollows:

Policemen’s and Firemen’s
Pension& ReliefFund

EmployeesPension
and Relief Fund

Valuation Date
ActuarialCost Method
Amortization Method
AmortizationPeriod

7/1/03
Projected UnitCredit
Level % Open
40 year (level percentage)

7/1/04
Aggregateentryage

Actuarialassetvaluation method
Actuarialassumptions:
Investmentrateofreturn
Projectedsalaryincreases
Postretirement benefit increases
Inflation
Cost of living adjustments

Market Value

6.65%
8% -4%dependingon service
None
3%
$15,000of annualpension is
increasedby the lesserof
inflationand 4%,but75% of
purchasingpoweris maintained.

Market Value

7.50%
5%
None
3%
2%
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Currentyearannual pensioncostsfor the PPRF,FPRF andERF are shown in thetrend
information. Asummaryscheduleofprior employercontributionsis presentedin therequired
supplementaryinformation (note11). The annualrequiredcontributionsweremadeby the
PPRF, FPRF and ERF fund plans.

Reserves
Thereare no assets legallyreservedfor purposesotherthan the paymentofplanmembersbenefits
for eitherplan. The plans held no investments (other thanU.S. governmentandU.S. government
guaranteedobligations)whosemarket value exceeds10 percentormoreofnetassetsavailable
for benefits.

Fireman’s PensionandRelief

DevelopmentofAnnualRequiredContributionUnder

ProjectedUnit Credit FundingMethodfor GASB 25

(1) Employer,employee,and statenormalcost $ 407,614
(2) Estimatedadministrativeexpenses 5,628
(3) Employeecontributions 115,789
(4) Netemployer and statenormalcosts

[(1) plus (2) minus(3)] 297,453~

(5) Actuarialaccruedliability
(a) Active members $ 5,103,976
(b) Inactivemembers 12,941,375
(c) Total 18,045,351

(6) Actuarial valueof fund assets 3,476,692

(7) Unfundedactuarialaccruedliability
[(5)(c) minus(6)] 14,568,659

(8) Amortizationofactuarialaccrued
liability over 40 years
[(7) times .046272] 674,128

(9) Totalemployerand state cost
[(4) plus (8)] 971,581

(10) Estimated state contribution 349,450

(11) Totalemployercontribution

[(9) minus(10)] $ 622,131
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ScheduleofFundingStatus

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UnfundedLiability
Valuation Valueof Accrued Accrued Funded Covered as a Percentof

Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

7/1/97 $ 3,945,259 $ 15,028,252 $ 11,082,993 26% $ 1,251,898 885%
7/1/99 4,460,224 16,653,720 12,193,496 27% 1,362,460 895%
7/1/01 4,072,513 17,309,972 13,237,459 24% 1,454,817 910%
7/1/03 3,476,692 18,045,351 14,568,659 19% 1,654,125 881%

Scheduleof Employer Contributions

AnnualRequired
YearEnding Contributjo Actual Contribution Percentage Contributed

6/30/97 $ 173,121 $ 173,131 100%
6/30/98 529,020 185,239 35%
6/30/99 529,020 198,206 37%
6/30/00 600,390 212,080 35%
6/30/01 600,390 227,986 38%
6/30/02 645,846 245,085 38%
6/30/03 645,846 263,467 41%

Policemen’s PensionandRelief

DevelopmentofAnnualRequiredContributionUnder

ProjectedUnit Credit FundingMethodfor GASB 25

(1) Employer, employee,and statenormalcost $ 515,778
(2) Estimated administrative expenses 5,628
(3) Employeecontributions 150,022
(4) Net employerand statenormalcosts

[(1) plus (2) minus(3)] 371,384

(5) Actuarial accrued liability
(a) Active members $ 6,419,669
(b) Inactivemembers 14.247,298
(c) Total 20,666,967

(6) Actuarial valueoffundassets 8.881,104

(7) Unfundedactuarial accrued liability

[(5)(c) minus (6)] 11,785,863

(8) Amortizationofactuarial accrued
liability over 40 years
[(7) times .046272] 545,361

(9) Totalemployerand state cost

[(4) plus (8)] 916,745

(10) Estimated state contribution 379,863

(11) Totalemployercontribution

[(9) minus(10)] $ 536,882
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ScheduleofFundingStatus

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UnfundedLiability
Valuation Valueof Accrued Accrued Funded Covered asa Percentof

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

7/1/97 $ 7,539,342 $ 17,458,772 $ 9,919,430 43% $ 1,659,754 598%
7/1/99 8,917,439 17,938,530 9,021,091 50% 1,693,720 533%
7/1/01 9,114,415 19,158,075 10,043,600 48% 1,829,390 549%
7/1/03 8,881,104 20,666,967 11,785,863 43% 2,143,167 550%

Scheduleof Employer Contributions

AnnualRequired

YearEnding Contribution Actual Contribution PercentageContributed

6/30/97 $ 213,249 $ 213,249 100%
6/30/98 504,069 213,249 42%
6/30/99 504,069 244,149 48%
6/30/00 470,081 261,239 56%
6/30/01 470,081 279,526 60%
6/30/02 527,609 299,093 57%
6/30/03 527,609 320,030 61%

The followingsummarizesthe changes in the net pensionobligation(NPO):

Employees
Pension and
ReliefFund

Annual required contribution(ARC) forthe year

ended June30, 2005 $ 605,140

Interest onnetpensionobligation(NPO) ( 25,433)

Adjustments to NPO 31.674

Annual pension cost 611,381

Employer contributionsfor the yearendedJune30, 2005 608,039

increase(decrease)to NPO ( 3,342)

Net pension obligation (asset) at July1, 2004 (339,665)

Netpension obligation (asset) atJune30, 2005 $ 343.007
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Employee’sPensionandReliefFund

SchedulesofFundingProgress

Actuarial Unfunded Unfundedasa
Valuation Accrued Accrued Funded Percentof

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1, 1998 $ 20,779,869 $ 19,508,628 $(1,271,241) 106.52% $ 5,738,083 (22.15)%
July 1, 1999 21,423,244 20,148,565 (1,274,679) 106.33% 6,045,799 (2l.08)%
July 1,2000 22,373,424 21,820,359 ( 553,065) 102.53% 6,649,840 ( 8.32)%
July 1, 2001 23,139,686 23,239,107 99,421 99.57% 7,209,208 1.38%
July 1,2002 23,698,070 24,736,061 1,037,991 95.80% 7,651,974 13.57%
July 1, 2003 24,430,332 26,264,966 1,834,634 93.01% 8,039,148 22.82%
July 1, 2004 25,507,836 27,507,737 1,999,901 92.73% 8,166,525 24.49%

Scheduleof Employer Contributions

Valuation AnnualRequired Actual

Date Contribution Contribution Shortfall

July 1, 1995 $ 349,473 $ 346,142 NA
July 1, 1996 341,860 360,218 NA
July 1, 1997 280,592 362,459 $( 81,867)
July 1, 1998 179,602 320,996 (141,394)
July 1, 1999 209,789 328,910 (119,121)
July 1, 2000 301,903 375,336 ( 73,433)
Julyl,2001 382,809 389,136 (16,327)
July 1, 2002 488,961 426,493 ( 62,468)
July 1, 2003 577,211 582,170 4,959
July 1, 2004 605,140 NA NA

DeferredCompensationPlan
Thegovernmentoffers itsemployeesa deferred compensationplancreatedin-accordancewith
InternalRevenueCode Section457. The plan, available toall full-time government employees
attheiroption, permitsparticipantsto defer aportionoftheirsalary until futureyears. The
deferredcompensationis not availableto participantsuntil termination, retirement, deathor
unforeseeable emergency.All amountsofcompensationdeferredunder theplan,all propertyand
rightspurchased with those amounts, andall income attributable to those amounts, propertyor
rights are heldfor the exclusive benefitoftheparticipantsandtheirbeneficiaries.
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Other PostemploymentBenefits
Uponterminationfrom city service, anemployeeworking forthe CityofMorgantownoti June15,

1993, who subsequentlyretires from the city will beeligible to convert sick leave days in excess
ofninety (90) daysbut lessthanone hundred andeighty one (181) days asof June15, 1993,to
healthinsuranceuponhis/herdayofretirement at therateofthree(3) sick days for one (1)month
ofsingle groupmedicalinsurance as carried by thecity, orat the rateoffour(4) sick daysfor one
(1) monthoffamily group medical insurance as carried by thecity. This benefitrequiresthat
employeeswith suchqualifying sickdaysput them intoescrowfor this benefit and forgo
collecting 1/3 daypayfor eachdayof sick leave. By placing these days in escrow,city

employees as of the date of this amendmentwill have theirsick day balancereducedto 90 days.
All employeeshired subsequent to June15, 1993,are notgrantedthis option.

7. Interfund Balances

Individual fundinterfundreceivableandpayable balances atJune30,2005for fundfinancial:

DueFrom Dueto
Other Funds Other Funds

GeneralFund $ -0- $ 647

SpecialRevenueFunds
BoardofParks and Recreation -0- 121,731
Public library 194,352 -0-
Libraryexpendable trust -0- 187,895

Capital Project Funds
Capitalreserve 603,638 -0-
Libraryexcess levy II -0- 5,747
Tax incrementfinancing -0- 289,240
Capitalprojects— ClayBattelle Branch -0- 710

Enterprise Funds
Airport fund -0- 192.020

$ 797.990 $ 797.990

8. Contingent Liabilities

Amountsreceivedorreceivablefrom grantagenciesaresubjectto audit and adjustment bygrantor
agencies, principallythefederalgovernment.Any disallowedclaims, includingamounts already
collected,may constitute a liabilityofthe applicable funds.
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The amount,if any,ofexpenditureswhich maybedisallowedby the grantorcannotbedetermined
at this time although thegovernmentexpectssuchamounts,if any, to be immaterial.

The governmentis a defendant in various lawsuits. Although theoutcomeoftheselawsuits is not
presentlydeterminable,it is the opinion of the government’s counselthat resolutionofthese matters
will not have a materialeffect on the financial conditionofthegovernment.

9. Restricted

Certain enterprisefundassets are restrictedforrepaymentof long-termdebt. Reservednetassets
include the excessof assets over certain liabilitiesrestrictedfor the debt service onrevenuebonds.

10. Deficit Fund Balances

The Tax IncrementFinancingFund had adeficit fundbalanceof$277,648. Thisdeficit will be
eliminatedas future taxrevenues from the City’s two TIF Districts are received andplannedtax
incrementfinancingbonds areissued.

Additionally, the BoardofParksandRecreationFundhad a deficit fund balanceof$209,129. The
eliminationof this deficit is dependenton theBoard’sability to secureadditional support from the
City oron increasingfeeschargedfor services provided..

11. Debt ServiceCoverage

The debt service coverage factor for the ParkingAuthority hasbeencalculated as followsfor the
yearendedJune30, 2005:

Total revenues $ 2,111,383
Less: Gainon saleofinvestments ( 928)
Less: Gainin market valueofinvestments ( 5,207)
Adjustedgrossrevenues 2,105,248

Total expenses 2.079,629
25,619

Add: Depreciation expense 357,566
Add: Amortizationofbond issuecosts 3,355
Add: Intereston bonds 250,527

Amount availablefordebt serviceandcapitalexpenditures $ 637M67

Maximum annual debt service $ 456.228
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Calculateddebt servicecoveragefactor 1.40

Requireddebt servicecoveragefactor 1.10

Based on thiscalculation,it appearsthat the Parking Authority was in compliancewith the
provisions set forth inits bondordinanceasofJune30, 2005.

12. RestatementofNet Assets

It wasdeterminedduringouraudit that thenet assets of theGovernmentalActivities required
restatementasfollows:

Net assets as previouslypresented $ 20,196,578

Add: Understatementofdonated capitalassets 3.030,000

Netassets restated $ 23.226.578
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$pecial CaDital
Revenue Project Total
Funds Funds (MemorandumOnly)

ASSETS

Cash $ 218,052 $ 76,237 $ 294,289
Investments 1,929,690 54,395 1,984,085
Receivables(netof allowancesfor
uncollectibles)

Accounts 55 988 1,043
Grants 3,002 -0- 3,002

Duefrom/(to)other funds 6,457 (295,697) ( 289,240)
Prepaid expenses 931 -0- 931

TOTAL ASSETS $ 2.158.187 $ (164.077) $ 1.994.110

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accountspayable $ 5,244 $ -0- $ 5,244
Accruedpayroll and compensated absences 45,526 -0- 45,526

Total liabilities 50,770 -0- 50,770

Fund Balances
Reservedfor unemployment 11,872 -0- 11,872
Unreserved 2.095,545 (164,077) 1.931.468

Total fundbalances 2.107,417 (164,077) 1.943.340

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 2,158,187 $ (164.077) $ 1.994.110

Theaccompanyingnotes are an integralpartofthe combining financial statements.
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Special Capital
Revenue Project Total
Funds Funds (MemorandumOnly)

Revenues
Chargesfor services $ 52,799 $ -0- $ 52,799
Fines and forfeits 961 -0- 961
Interest 48,287 625 48,912
Donations 438,489~ 17,540 456,029
Taxes -0- 31,186 31,186
Intergovernmental:

Federal 354,182 38,074 392,256
State 544,930 -0- 544,930
County 220,000 40,000 260,000

Contributions from employees -0- -0- -0-
Contributionsfrom employer -0- -0- -0-
Gainon investments 52,024 -0- 52,024
Other 635 44 679

Total revenues 1,712,307 127,469 1.839,776

Expenditures
Generalgovernment 8,575 110 8,685
Public safety 14,885 -0- 14,885
Cultureandrecreation 1,641,415 -0- 1,641,415
Community development 319,093 336,199 655,292
Benefitpayments -0- -0- -0-

Total expenditures 1.983.968 336.309 2,320,277

(Deficiency)of revenues(under)expenditures ( 271,661) (208,840) ( 480.501)

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Operating transfers in 771,031 22,324 793,355
Operating transfers(out) ( 372,321) -0- ( 372,321)

Total otherfinancingsources (uses) 398,710 22,324 421.034

Excess(deficiency)ofrevenues and
otherfinancingsources over(under)
expendituresand other financing uses 127,049 (186,516) ( 59,467)

Fund balancebeginningofyear 1,980,368 22,439 2.002.807

Fund balance endofyear $ 2.107.417 $ (164.Q71) $ 1.943.340

The accompanyingnotes are an integralpartofthe combining financial statements.
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Community Small
Coal Development LocalLaw Cities Library Dorsey’s

Severance ~J~k Public ~ijce Special EnforcementBlock Expendable Knob Total
Fund Grant Library Forfeiture Grants Grant Grant Trust Escrow (MemorandumOnly)

ASSETS

Cash $ 19,451 $ 3,121 $ 101,934 $ 64,146 $ -0- $ 1,744 $ 392 $ -0- $ 27,264 $ 218,052
Investments -0- 79,985 729,701 -0- -0- -0- -0- 1,120,004 -0- 1,929,690
Receivables(netof allowancesfor
uncollectibles)

Accounts -0- -0- 55 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 55
Grants -0- 3,002 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 3,002

Duefroml(to) otherfunds -0- -0- 194,352 -0- -0- -0- -0- (187,895) -0- 6,457
Prepaidexpenses -0- -0- 931 -0- _•~ ~ ~0 0

TOTAL ASSETS $ 19.451 $ 86.108 $ L026.973 $ 64.146 $ Q $ j~2~44$ 392 $ 932.109 $ 27i64 $ 2.158.187

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accountspayable $ -0- $ 1,400 $ 3,844 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 5,244
Accruedpayroll andcompensatedabsences -0- 1,601 43,925 -0- ~Q -0- 45,526

Total liabilities -0- 3,001 47.769 0- -0- 50.770

Fund Balances
Reservedfor unemployment -0- -0- 11,872 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 11,872
Unreserved 19.451 83,107 967.332 64,146 L24~ ~2Z 932.109 27,264 2,095.545

Total fund balances 19.451 83.107 979.204 64.146 .L244 392 932JO~ 27,264 2,107.417

TOTAL LIABILITIES ANt)
FUND BALANCES $ 19.451 $ 86.108 $ 1.026.973 $ 64.146 $ Q $ L24~ $ 392~ $ 932.109 $ 27264 $ 2.158.187

The accompanying notes are an integralpartofthe combining financialstatements.
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Community Small
Coal Development Local Law ~ Library Dorsey’s

Severance ~j~k Public Police Special EnforcementBlock Expendable j~j~
Fund Grant Library Fo~F~1iiire Grants Grant j~j~jj~ Thist Escrow (MemorandumOnly)

Revenues
Charges forservices $ -0- $ -0- $ 52,799 $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 52,799
Finesandforfeits -0- -0- -0- 961 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 961
Interest 118 477 13,623 757 -0- 11 -0- 33,206 95 48,287
Donations -0- -0- 38,489 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 400,000 438,489
Intergovernmental:

Federal -0- 348,502 -0- -0- -0- 5,680 -0- -0- -0- 354,182
State 74,835 -0- 356,534 -0- 113,561 -0- -0- -0- -0- 544,930
County -0- -0- 220,000 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 220,000

Contributionsfrom employees -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Contributionsfromemployer -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Gainoninvestments -0- -0- 10,719 -0- -0- -0- -0- 41,305 -0- 52,024
Other -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- ~ -0- -0- -0- 635

Total revenues 74,953 348.979 692,164 1,718 113,561 ~32~ -0- 74,511 400,095 1,712,307

Expenditures
Generalgovernment -0- 1,350 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 7,225 -0- 8,575
Publicsafety -0- -0- -0- 3,368 -0- 11,517 -0- -0- -0- 14,885
Cultureandrecreation -0- -0- 1,074,831 -0- 113,561 -0- -0- -0- 453,023 1,641,415
Communitydevelopment -0- 319,093 -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- 319,093
Benefitpayment -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- ~ -0- -0- -0-

Totalexpenditures -0- 32~,443~ 1.074,831 3,368 113,561 11.517 -0- 7.225 453,023 1.983.968

Excess(deficiency)of revenues
over(under) expenditures 74.953 28.536 (p2,667) (1.650) -0- ( 5.191) -0- 67.286 ( 52.928) ( 271.661)

Other Financing Sources(Uses)
Operatingtransfersin -0- -0- 761,235 -0- -0- -0- -0- 9,796 -0- 771,031
Operatingtransfers(out) (57.000) -0- ( 309,796) 0 ~0 0 0 ( 5.525) 0 ( 372.321)

Total otherfinancingsources(uses) (57.000) -0- 451.439 -0- -0- -0- ~ 4.271 0 398.710

Excess(deficiency)of revenues
andotherfinancingsources
over(under) expendituresand
otherfinancinguses 17,953 28,536 68,772 (1,650) -0- ( 5,191) -0- 71,557 ( 52,928) 127,049

Fund balance beginningof year 1,498 54.571 910.432 65.796 -0- 6.935 392 860,552 80,192 1.980.368

Fund balanceend of year $ 19.451 $ 83.107 $ 979.204 $ 64.146 $ -0- $ 1.744 $ 392 $ 932.109 $ 27.264 $ 2.107.417

The accompanying notes arean integralpartofthe combining financialstatements.
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Capital ~pLtal
Ljk~y Project Project Business
Excess CheatArea ClayBattelle Increment Improvement Total
Leyyjj Branch Branch Financian District (MemorandumOnly)

ASSETS

Cash $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ 11,504 $ 64,733 $ 76,237
Investments 19,045 -0- 35,350 -0- -0- 54,395
Accountsreceivable -0- -0- -0- 88 900 988
Interestreceivable -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
Duefrom/(to)otherfunds ( 5.747) ( 710) (289,240) _____ (295.697)

TOTALASSETS $ 0 $ ~j$j~ $(~fl~4~,) $(164,071)

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accountspayable $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0- $ -0-

Fund Balances
Unreserved 13.298 -0- 34.640 (277.648) 65.63~ (164.077)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES $ j~ $ f~ $ ~ $(277,64$) $ ~

Theaccompanying notesare anintegralpartof the combining financialstatements.
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Capital Capital
Library Project Project Business
Excess CheatArea ClayBattelle Increment Improvement Total
Levy II Branch Branch Financing District (MemorandumQpjy)

Revenues
Interest $ 234 $ -0- $ 342 $ 49 $ -0- $ 625
Donations -0- -0- 2,540 -0- 15,000 17,540
Taxes -0- -0- -0- 18,328 12,858 31,186
Intergovernmental:

Federal -0- -0- -0- -0- 38,074 38,074
State -0- -0- -0- -0- -0- -0-
County -0- -0- 15,000 -0- 25,000 40,000

Other 44 -0- -0- -0- -0- 44
Total revenues 278 17.882 18.377 90.932 127.469

Expenditures
Generalgovernment 75 -0- 4 -0- 31 110
Communitydevelopment 4.624 3.250 280.733 47.592 336.199

Totalexpenditures 4.699 3.254 280.733 47.623 336.309

(Deficiency) excessof revenues
(under)overexpenditures L4.421) 14.628 (~62.356) 43.309 (208.840)

OtherFinancingSources(Uses)
Operatingtransfersin -0- -0- -0- -0- 22,324 22,324
Operatingtransfers(out) -0- -0-

Total otherfinancingsources (uses) 22.324 22.324

(Deficiency) excessofrevenuesand
otherfinancingsources (under)over
expendituresandotherfinancinguses ( 4,421) -0- 14,628 (262,356) 65,633 (186,516)

Fundbalancebeginningof year 17~7j~ -0- 20,012 (15.292) -0-

Fundbalanceendofyear $ ~ $ ~ $(277~4I) $ ~ $(164.om

The accompanying notes are an integralpartofthe combining financial statements.
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• REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER

• MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor andCouncil
CityofMorgantown
Morgantown,WestVirginia

We have audited the financial statementsofthe governmentalactivities,business-type activities,
eachmajorfundand the aggregateremainingfundinformationofthe CityofMorgantown,West
Virginia asofandforthe yearendedJune30, 2005,whichcollectivelycomprisetheCityof
Morgantown, WestVirginia’s basicfinancialstatements and have issuedourreport thereon
datedJanuary 12,2006. We conductedouraudit in accordance with auditing standards
generallyacceptedin theUnitedStatesofAmerica and the standardsapplicableto financial
audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standardsissuedby theComptrollerGeneralofthe
UnitedStates.

Internal Control OverFinancial Reporting
Inplanning andperformingouraudit, weconsideredthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s
internal control over financialreportingin order to determineourauditingproceduresforthe
purposeofexpressingouropinionon thefinancialstatements and not toprovideanopinionon
the internal control overfinancialreporting. Ourconsiderationofthe internalcontrolover
financial reporting wouldnotnecessarilydiscloseall matters in the internalcontrolthat might
be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or moreoftheinternalcontrolcomponentsdoesnot reduceto arelativelylow
level the risk thatmisstatementscausedby errororfraud in amounts that would bematerialin
relationto the financial statementsbeingauditedmayoccur andnotbedetectedwithin a timely
periodby employeesin thenormalcourseofperformingtheirassigned functions. Wenotedno
mattersinvolving the internalcontroloverfinancial reportingand itsoperationthatweconsider
to be materialweaknesses.
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ComplianceAnd Other Matters
As partofobtainingreasonableassurance about whether the CityofMorgantown,West
Virginia’s financialstatements are freeofmaterial misstatement, weperformedtestsof its
compliancewith certainprovisionsoflaws,regulations, contracts,and grant agreements,
noncompliancewith which could have a direct and material effect on thedeterminationof
financial statementamounts.However, providingan opinionon compliancewith those
provisions wasnotan objectiveofouraudit, andaccordingly,wedo notexpresssuchan
opinion. Theresultsofourtests disclosedno instancesofnoncomplianceor othermatters that
arerequiredto bereportedunder Government AuditingStandards.

This report is intendedsolely for the information and useofthe MunicipalOfficials ofthe
City ofMorgantown,West Virginia, state andfederalawardingagenciesandpass-through
entities,and theWestVirginia StateTax Department andis not intended to be and should not
beused by anyone other thanthesespecifiedparties.However, this reportis amatterof
public record.

PA), c

• January12, 2006
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• REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
• • APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE

WITH 0MB CIRCULAR A-133

TheHonorableMayorandCouncil
• City ofMorgantown

Morgantown,WestVirginia

Compliance
• • We have audited the complianceofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia, with thetypesof

compliancerequirementsdescribed in theU.S. OfficeofManagementandBudget (0MB)
CircularA-133Compliance Supplementthat are applicable toeachofits majorfederal
programsfor the yearendedJune30, 2005. The CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s major
federalprograms areidentifiedin the summaryofauditor’sresultssectionofthe accompanying
scheduleof fmdings andquestionedcosts. Compliancewith the requirementsoflaws,
regulations,contractsandgrantsapplicableto eachofits majorfederalprogramsis the

• responsibilityoftheCityofMorgantown, WestVirginia’s management. Our responsibility is to
express anopinionon theCity ofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s compliance based onouraudit.

We conductedouraudit ofcompliancein accordance with auditingstandardsgenerally
accepted in theUnitedStatesofAmerica; the standards applicable to fmancial audits
contained inGovernmentAuditing Standards,issued by theComptrollerGeneralofthe

• United States;and0MB CircularA-l33, AuditsofStates,Local Governments,andNon-Profit
Organizations.Those standardsand0MB Circular A-133 requirethat weplanand perform
the audit to obtainreasonableassuranceaboutwhethernoncompliancewith thetypesof

• compliance requirements referredto abovethat could havea direct and materialeffect on a
major federal programoccurred.An audit includes examining, on a testbasis,evidenceabout
the City of Morgantown, WestVirginia’s compliancewith those requirements andperforming
suchotherprocedures asweconsidered necessary inthecircumstances~We believethat our
auditprovides a reasonable basisforouropinion. Ourauditdoesnotprovidealegal
determination on theCity ofMorgantown, WestVirginia’s compliancewith those
requirements.

In ouropinion, theCityofMorgantown, WestVirginia, complied,in all material respects, with
the requirementsreferredto above that are applicable toeachof its majorfederalprogramsfor
the year endedJune30, 2005. •
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InternalControlOverCompliance
Themanagementofthe CityofMorgantown, West Virginia,is responsiblefor establishingand
maintaining effectiveinternalcontrol over compliancewith requirementsof laws, regulations,
contracts and grantsapplicableto federalprograms. In planning andperformingouraudit,we
consideredtheCityofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s internal control over compliance with
requirementsthat could have a direct and material effect on amajorfederalprogramin order to
determineourauditing procedures for thepurposeofexpressingouropinion on compliance and
to testandreporton the internal control over compliance in accordance with0MB Circular
A-l33. •

Our considerationof the internal control over compliance would not necessarilydiscloseall
matters in theinternalcontrol that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition inwhichthe design or operationofone or moreofthe internal controlcomponents
does notreduceto a relativelylow level the risk that noncompliance withapplicable
requirementsoflaws, regulations,contractsand grants caused by errororfraud that would be
material inrelationto amajorfederalprogrambeingaudited may occur and not bedetected
within atimely periodby employeesin the normal courseofperformingtheirassigned
functions. Wenotedno mattersinvolving the internal control overcomplianceand itsoperation
thatweconsiderto be material weaknesses.

Thisreportis intended solelyforthe informationanduseoftheMunicipal Officials ofthe City
ofMorgantown,WestVirginia, state and federal awardingagenciesandpass-throughentities,
and theWestVirginia StateTax Department andis not intended andshouldnot beusedby
anyoneotherthanthese specified parties. However, thisreportis a matterofpublic record.

Li~�~�.&~A~~tL &i.c

January12, 2006
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

A. Summaryof Audit Results

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statementsofthe City of
Morgantown,West Virginia.

2 No reportableconditionsweredisclosedduring theaudit ofthe financial statements and are
reportedin thereporton compliance and internal control over financialreportingbasedon an
auditoffinancial statementsperformed in accordancewith GovernmentAuditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliancematerial to the financial statementsoftheCity of
• Morgantown,WestVirginia wasdisclosedduring theaudit.

4. No reportableconditionsweredisclosedduring the auditofthemajorfederal awardprograms
arereportedin the report on compliancewith the requirements applicable toeachmajor

• programand internal control overcompliancein accordance with0MB CircularA- 133.

5. The auditor’sreport on complianceforthemajorfederalaward programsfor the Cityof
Morgantown,West Virginiaexpressesanunqualifiedopinion.

6. Audit findings relative to the majorfederal award programsfor the CityofMorgantown,West
Virginia expressesan unqualified opinion.

7. The programstestedasmajorprogramswere DepartmentofTransportation’sFederalAviation
AdministrationCFDA number20.106,DepartmentofTransportation’sFederalHighway
AdministrationCFDA number20.205andDepartmentofHousing andUrbanDevelopment’s
CommunityPlanning andDevelopment ProgramCFDA number14.218..

8. Thethreshold fordistinguishingTypes A andB programs was$300,000.

9. Theentity does not qualifyasa low risk auditee.

B. Findings - Financial StatementsAudit

None

C. Findings and QuestionedCosts - Major FederalAward Program Audit

None
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Accrued or • Accruedor
Federal (Deferred) Receipts or • Federal (Deferred)

• CFDA Grant Revenue at Revenues Disbursements!Revenueat
FederalGrantor/Pass-ThroughProgramTitle Number Number July 1. 2004 Recognized Expenditures •June30,2005

DepartmentofTransportation

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
Denartmentof Transportation

Stateand Community Highway Safety • 20.600 P041805 • $ -0- $ 4,556 $ 4,556 $ -0-
Stateand Community Highway Safety 20.600 F05-l57INLOP-07 -0- 3,130 3,130 -0-
Stateand CommunityHighway Safety 20.600 F04-HS-04 -0- 882 882 -0-

Federal Aviation Administration
Airport ImprovementProgram 20.106 3-54-0015-1902 -0- 178,282 178,282 -0-
Airport ImprovementProgram 20.106 3-54-0015-022-2004 -0- 385,486 385,486 -0-
Airport ImprovementProgram 20.106 3-54-0015-023-2004 -0- 1,424,890 1,424,890 -0-
Airport ImprovementProgram 20.106 3-54-0015-021-2003 -0- 493,979 493,979 -0-
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-54-0015-020-2003 -0- 54,537 54,537 -0-
Airport ImprovementProgram 20.106 3-54-0015-025-2005 -0- 97,119 97,119 -0-

Federal HighwayAdministration
WestVirginia Departmentof Transportation—

Division of Highways
Highway Planning andConstructionGrant 20.205 TEA-0Q22(001)E -0- 38,074 38,074 -0-
HighwayPlanning and ConstructionGrant • 20.205 TEA-0Q22(001)E -0- 272,670 262,670 -0-

UnitedStatesDepartmentofJustice

Office of Justice Programs. BureauofJustice Assistance
Byrne FormulaGrantProgram 16.579 04-DC-il -0- 108,538 108,538 -0-
Byrne Formula GrantProgram 16.579 03-DC-l2 -0- • • 11,413 11,413 -0-
BulletproofVest Partnership Programs 16.607 • -0- 5,518 5,518 -0-
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CITY OFMORGANTOWN, WESTVIRGINIA
SCHEDULEOFEXPENDITURESAND FEDERALAWARDS (CONT’D)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2005

Accrued or Accrued or
Federal (Deferred) Receiptsor Federal (Deferred)
CFDA Grant Revenue at Revenues Disbursements! Revenue at

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Program Title Number Number July1, 2004 Recognized Expenditures June30,2005

United StatesDepartmentofJustice(cont’d)

Office of JuvenileJusticeand Delinquency Prevention.
Office of JusticePrograms

JuvenileAccountabilityIncentiveBlock GrantProgram 16.523 2003-JB-BX-0001 $ -0- $ 28,065 $ 28,065 $ -0-
EnforcingUnderageDrinking Law Programs 16.727 O4UD130 -0- 5,859 5,859 -0-
LocalLaw EnforcementBlockGrant Program 16.592 2003-LB-BX-1734 -0- 5,719 5,719 -0-

CorporationtbrNational andCommunityService

Retired andSeniorVolunteerPrograms 94.002 DVSA-51203-P74-4101 -0- 54,642 54,642 -0-

Departmentof HomelandSecurity

StateDomesticPreparedness Equipment SupportProgram 97.004 -0- 285,360 285,360 -0-

Department ofHousingandUrbanDevelopment

CommunityPlanning andDevelopment, Denartmentof
Housing andUrbanDevelopment
CommunityDevelopmentBlockGrant/EntitlementGrants 14.218 B-04-MC-54-0007 -0- 348,502 348,502 -0-

Notesto ScheduleofExpendituresof FederalAwards

Note1- SignificantAccountingPolicies
Theaccompanyingscheduleof federalawardsis asummaryof theactivity of theCity of Morgantown,WestVirginia’s federal award programs and presentstransactionsthat would
be included in financialstatementsof the City of Morgantownpresented on the accrualbasisof accountingascontemplated by accountingprinciples generally accepted inthe
UnitedStatesof America.
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Department ofTransportation — FederalAviation Administration, CFDA Number 2Q.106

No prior audit findings
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CITY OF MORGANTOWN, WEST VIRGINIA
SCHEDULE OF PASSENGERFACILITY CHARGES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

BalanceJune30, 2004 • $ 3,116

Revenuesreceived:
• Passengerfacility charges 50,883

Interestincome 16

Disbursements:
CapitalProjects 50,795

BalanceJune30, 2005 $ 3,220

The accompanying independentauditor’sreportis an integralpartof this schedule.
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Tetrick & Bartlett,
• • • Certified PublicAccountants

• Consultants
• 122 N. Oak St. . P0 Box 1916 . Clarksburg, WV 26302-1916 (304) 624-~5564 . Fax: (304) 624-5582 . www.tethckbarttett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
• WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER

FACILITY CHARGES PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
• • • CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

TheHonorableMayorandCouncil •

• City ofMorgantown
• Morgantown,WestVirginia

• • Compliance • . . •

We haveaudited the complianceofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia with thecompliance
• requirements describedin thePassengerFacilityChargeAudit Guide forPublicAgencies,issued

by theFederalAviation Administration(Guide),for its passenger facility charge programfor the
yearendedJune30, 2005. Compliance withtherequirementsoflaws andregulationsapplicableto
its passengerfacility charge programis theresponsibilityofthe CityofMorgantown,West
Virginia’s management.Ourresponsibility is to express anopiniononthe City ofMorgantown,

• WestVirginia’s compliance based onouraudit.

We conductedouraudit ofcompliance inaccordancewith auditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedin
•theUnitedStatesofAmerica; thestandardsapplicable to financial auditscontainedin Government

• Auditing Standards,issued by theComptrollerGeneraloftheUnitedStates;andthe Guide. Those
standardsandthe Guide requirethatwe planandperformthe audit to obtain reasonableassurance
aboutwhethernoncompliance with the compliance requirements referred toabovethatcould have
a direct and material effect on thepassengerfacility chargeprogramoccurred.An auditincludes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about theCity ofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s compliance
with those requirements andperformingsuchotherproceduresasweconsidered necessaryinthe
circumstances. Webelievethatourauditprovidesa reasonable basisforouropinion. Ouraudit
doesnotprovidea legal determinationoftheCityofMorgantown, WestVirginia’s, compliance
with those requirements. . . •

In ouropinion, CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia complied, in all material respects,with the
requirementsreferred toabovethat are applicable toits passengerfacility chargeprogramfor the
year endedJune 30,2005.
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City of Morgantown,WestVirginia Page2

InternalControlOverCompliance
Themanagementofthe CityofMorgantown,WestVirginia is responsiblefor establishingand
maintainingeffectiveinternal control over compliance with requirementsoflawsandregulations
applicableto thepassengerfacility charge program. In planning andperformingouraudit,we
consideredtheCity ofMorgantown,WestVirginia’s internalcontrol overcompliancewith•
requirementsthat could have a direct and materialeffecton the passengerfacility chargeprogram
in orderto determineourauditing proceduresfor thepurposeofexpressingouropinionon
complianceand to test and report on the internal control overcompliancein accordancewith
Guide.

Ourconsiderationofthe internal control over compliance would notnecessarilydiscloseall matters
in theinternalcontrolthatmightbe materialweaknesses.A materialweaknessis a conditionin
which the designoroperationofoneormoreofthe internal controlcomponentsdoesnotreduceto
a relativelylow level the risk thatnoncompliancewith applicablerequirementsoflawsand
regulationsthat would be material inrelationto the passenger facilitychargeprogrambeingaudited
mayoccurandnotbe detectedwithin atimelyperiodbyemployeesin thenormalcourseof
performingtheirassignedfunctions. We notedno mattersinvolving the internalcontrolover
complianceand its operation thatweconsiderto be material weaknesses.

Thisreportis intended solelyfor the informationanduseofthe Municipal Officialsofthe Cityof
Morgantown,WestVirginia and theFederalAviation Administration andis not intendedto be and
shouldnotbeusedby anyoneother thanthesespecified parties. However, thisrestrictionis not
intendedto limit the distributionofthis report, whichis amatterofpublic record.

January12, 2006
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